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2025
2025
2024 2025
2017 11 86,931 12,997.92 101.35 15,154
2018 11 111,925 16,735.03 98.23 14,687
2019 11 179,810 26,885.19 106.75 15,961
2020 11 226,624 33,884.82 110.69 16,550
2021 11 244,726 36,591.43 110.63 16,541
2022 11 168,454 25,187.24 90.95 13,599
2023 11 200,750 30,016.14 91.38 13,663
2024 11 215,641 32,242.64 97.37 14,559
2024 204,823 30,625.13 92.39 13,814
2024 206,734 30,910.87 93.75 14,018
2024 207,834 31,075.34 94 .54 14,136
2024 212,155 31,721.42 96.42 14,417
2024 214,338 32,047.82 97.66 14,602
2024 218,172 32,621.08 98.56 14,737
2024 10 214,233 32,032.12 96.04 14,360
2024 11 215,641 32,242 .64 97.37 14,559
2024 12 209,778 31,366.01 94.83 14,179
2025 209,110 31,266.13 95.15 14,227
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2025 213,947 31,989.36 97.39 14,562
2025 212,883 31,830.27 96.85 14,481
2024 12 2025

2016 11 16 2017 11 1.10 164
2017 12 2018 11 1.20 179
2018 12 2019 11 1.20 179
2019 12 2020 11 1.20 179
2020 12 2021 11 1.20 179
2021 12 2022 11 1.20 179
2022 12 2023 11 1.20 179
2023 12 2024 11 1.20 179
2024 12 12 0.10 15

2025 14 0.10 15

2025 12 0.10 15

2025 12 0.10 15

2024 2025 1.20 179
(2016 11 16 2025 9.90 1,480
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2016 11 16 2017 11 2.45
2017 12 2018 11 -1.89
2018 12 2019 11 9.90
2019 12 2020 11 4.81
2020 12 2021 11 1.03
2021 12 2022 11 -16.70
2022 12 2023 11 1.79
2023 12 2024 11 7.87

100x =

)
(2016 11 1620162016 12 ) -0.81
(2017 20172017 12 ) 3.70
2018 20182018 12 -0.58
2019 20192019 12 7.43
2020 20202020 12 6.20
2021 20212021 12 -0.65
2022 20222022 12 -16.28
2023 20232023 12 6.44
2024 20242024 12 0.94
2025 20252025 2.45

100x% +

2025
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2022 12 566,946 190,910 2,198,447
2023 11 (566,946) (190,910) (2,198,447)
2023 12 éiﬁi‘éi) (igjgg) éiiﬁii@
2024 11 ’ ? ’ y
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2024 11 30
2024 11 30 2023 11 30
USD UsD
5 5 . $209,537,237 31,330,008 $194,507,856 29,082,815
2.1 6,642,128 993,131 5,977,454 893,749
2.10 3 69,664 10,416 1,196,639 178,921
36,015 5,385 22,415 3,351
216,285,044 32,338,940 201,704,364 30,158,837
8.2C 246,745 36,893 329,677 49,293
2.8

2 10 3 155,903 23,311 184,774 27,627
8.1E 78,882 11,794 62,515 9,347
8.1C 43,667 6,529 40,408 6,042
8.1B 43,530 6,509 63,838 9,545
8.1A 32,375 4,841 35,278 5,275
31,102 4,650 5,458 816
8.2E 8,418 1,259 8,092 1,210
8.1D 5,289 791 797 119
- 630 94
2.88 - 64,886 9,702
645,911 96,577 796,353 119,071

$215,639,133 32,242,363 $200,908,011 30,039,766
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2024 11 30 1
2024 11 30 2023 11 30
UsD UsD
FVTPL a
2.11 $8,471,979 1,266,730  $7,626,372 1,140,295
2.11 273,033 40,824 249,525 37,309
(1,038,246) (155,239) (142,983) (21,379)
2.11 7
s 51y 10,595,648 1,584,261  (2,544,607) (380,470)
7

18,302,414 2,736,577 5,188,307 775,756

8.2A
8.2C 1,351,909 202,137 1,293,008 193,331
8.1C 528,018 78,949 468,481 70,047
8.28 314,995 47,098 374,785 56,038
8.1A 131,040 19,593 112,436 16,811
8.1D 64,361 9,623 21,137 3,160
8.1F 57,106 8,538 65,561 9,803
47,645 7,124 21,897 3,274
8.1B 40,273 6,022 77,435 11,578
8.2F 21,121 3,158 18,739 2,802
2,556,468 382,243 2,453,479 366, 844
15,745,946 2,354,334 2,734,828 408,911
$15,745,946 2,354,334 $2,734,828 408,911

6)) FVTPL
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2024 11 30
usD
2022 11 30 $165, 756,961 24,783,981
3 52,369,147 7,830,235
2.8 (17,510,263) (2,618,135)
2.7 (2,442 ,662) (365,227)
2,734,828 408,911
2023 11 30 $200,908,011 30,039,766
3 21,649,661 3,237,057
2.8 (20,006,778) (2,991,413)
2.7 (2,657,707) (397,380)
15,745,946 2,354,334
2024 11 30 $215,639,133 32,242,363
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2024 11 30 1
2024 11 30 2023 11 30

UsD UsD
$15,745,946 2,354,334 $2,734,828 408,911
(12,971,979)  (1,939,570) (36,326,372)  (5,431,519)
7,500,000 1,121,400 1,000,000 149,520
1,038,246 155,239 142,983 21,379
(10,595,648)  (1,584,261) 2,544,607 380,470

/

- 2,800,000 418,656
(13,600) (2,033) (8,910) (1,332)
1 (121,571) 18,177 48,807 7,298
581,394 86,930  (27,064,057)  (4,046,618)
22,776,636 3,405,563 51,646,731 7,722,219
(20,035,649)  (2,995,730) (20,227,775)  (3,024,457)
(2,657,707) (397,380)  (2,442,662) (365,227)
83,280 12,452 28,976,294 4,332,535
664,674 99,382 1,912,237 285,918
51 5,977,454 893,749 4,065,217 607,831
$6,642,128 993,131  $5,977,454 893,749

2.1
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2024 11 30 1

2024 11 30 2023 11 30
usD UsD
$273,033 40,824 $249,525 37,309

$8,471,979 1,266,730 $7,626,372 1,140,295

€Y)
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2024 11 30 1
1.
2013 12 2 UBS
1l
2016 10 3
UBS
2016 11 16
2014 1 22
KY1-9005
One Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman KY1-9005, Cayman
Islands
2024 5 31 UBS AG UBS AG
2024 5 31 UBS
DS
1 A
A A
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2024 11 30 1
SF
1933
1940
Baa3 BBB-
& Baa3 BBB-
Bal
BB+
2024 11 30 2023 11 30 100.0%
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2024 11 30 1
2 A
c
A
c
c
2163 12 1
(i) 300
(i)
1
1 25
1
1
1
2023 3 19  UBS AG UBS

FINMA AG
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2024 11 30 1
UBS AG 2023 6 12 AG
AG AG
UBS AG 1 UBS AG
AG
UBS AG AG
AG
UBS AG UBS AG
AG 2024 5 31
2024 2 1 UBS
2024 3 1
2024 2 28
111 UBS 11
UBS AG
2025 4 29
2.
IFRS
IFRS
4
IFRS 10 IFRS 12 1AS 27 2012
IFRS 9 3
FVTPL

FVOCI IFRS 9
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2024 11 30 1

FVTPL
FVTPL

)

i) SPPI

) SPPI

i)

iii)FVTPL

FVTPL

SPPI
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2024 11 30 1
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2024 11 30 1
ECL FVOCI
ECL
- FVTPL
- 12
ECL
2024 11 30
2023 12 1
2.1
3
2024 11 30 2023 11 30
2024 2023
$ 23,757  $ 21,849
6,618,371 5,955,605

$ 6,642,128 $ 5,977,454
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2024 11 30 1
2.2
A
FVTPL
2024 11 30 - 2024 11 30 -
$ 209,537,237 $ 236,223,822
2023 11 30 - 2023 11 30 -
$ 194,507,856 $ 231,790,089
2024 11 30 2023 11 30
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2024 11 30 1
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2024 11 30 1
F
NAV
(1) (i) (iii)
@iv)
7 00
1 10,000

2.3

2024 11 30 2023 11 30
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2024 11 30 1

2.4

2023 11 30

2.5

2.6
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2024 11 30 1
2.7

(1)

(i) Q)

(i) @b
1
2024 11 30 2023 11 30
2024 2023

A $ 2,657,707 $ 2,442,662
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2024 11 30 1

2.8

IAS 32

2024 11 30 2023
11 30
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2024 11 30 1

2.9

2.10

2.11 FVTPL
FVTPL
FVTPL
FVTPL

FVTPL

FVTPL

2.12
2063 12 2

2024 11 30 2023 11 30
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2024 11 30 1

IAS 12

2024 11 30 2023 11 30
2.13
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2024 11 30 1
3.
1
1
1 100
2 5
2024 11 30 1
1
A $ 215,639,133 2,214,382 $ 97.3812
2023 11 30 1
1
A $ 200,908,011 2,198,447 $ 91.3863
2024 11 30 2023 11 30 1

100%
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2024 11 30 1

%

1 2.00%
1 2 1.60%
2 3 1.20%
3 4 0.80%
4 5 0.40%
5
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2024 11 30 1
2024 11 30

A $21,649,661 $(20,006,778)
2023 11 30

A $52,369,147 $(17,510,263)
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2024 11 30 1
2024 11 30 2023 11 30 1
2023 11 30 2024 11 30
A 2,198,447 226,434 (210,499) 2,214,382
2022 11 30 2023 11 30
A 1,822,411 566,946 (190,910) 2,198,447
1
4.
5.

5.1
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2024 11 30 1

Q)

IMF
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2024 11 30 1
2024 11 30
2024 11 30
Y $ -3 -3 (31,102) $ (31,102) 0.0%
- - (31,102) (31,102) 0.0%
UsD 6,642,128 209,537,237 (509,130) 215,670,235 100. 0%
$ 6,642,128 $ 209,537,237 $ (540,232) $ 215,639,133 100.0%
2023 11 30
2023 11 30
Y $ -3 - % (5,458) $ (5,458) 0.0%
- - (5.458) (5.458) 0.0%
USD 5,977,454 194,507,856 428,159 200,913,469 100. 0%
$ 5,977,454 $ 194,507,856 $ 422,701 $ 200,908,011 100.0%
2024 11 30 2023 11 30
2024
JPY +/- 2.01% +/- $ 625
2023

JPY +/- 6.22% +/- $ 339
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2024 11 30 1
(i)

3
2024 11 30 2023 11 30 50

33,092 29,778
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2024 11 30 1
(i)
2024 11 30 2023 11 30 1%
2,095,372 1,945,079
1%
2024 11 30

12% 2023 11% 87% 2023 87%

2024 11 30 2023 11 30
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2024 11 30
2024 11 30 2023 11 30
2023 11 30
2024 11 30
%

Aaa 8.3%
Aal 12.5%
Aa2 29.6%
Aa3 17.6%
Al 16.9%
A2 5.3%
A3 5.4%
Baal 0.9%
Baa2 1.8%
Baa3 0.6%

98.9%

Moody*s Investor Service
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2024 11 30
2023 11 30
%
*

Aaa 9.5%
Aal 10.3%
Aa2 27.8%
Aa3 18.1%
AL 16.9%
A2 8.4%
A3 4.6%
Baal 0.9%
Baa2 2.3%

98.8%
* Moody*s Investor Service

C
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2024 11 30 1
2024 11 30 1 13
$ 246,745 $ - $ 246,745
155,903 - 155,903
78,882 - 78,882
43,667 - 43,667
43,530 - 43,530
32,375 - 32,375
31,102 - 31,102
8,418 - 8,418
5,289 - 5,289
$ 645,911 $ - 3 645,911
2023 11 30 1 13
$ 329,677 $ - 3 329,677
184,774 - 184,774
64,886 - 64,886
63,838 - 63,838
62,515 - 62,515
40,408 - 40,408
35,278 - 35,278
8,092 - 8,092
5,458 - 5,458
797 - 797
630 - 630

$ 796,353 $ - $ 796,353

15%
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2024 11 30 1
2024 11 30 2023 11 30
2024 11 30 2023 11 30
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2024 11 30 1

5.2
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2024 11 30 1
2024 11 30 2023 11 30
E

2024 11 30 2023 11 30
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2024 11 30 1

2163 12 1

5.3
IFRS 13
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2024 11 30 1
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2024 11 30 1
2024 11 30
2024 11 30
1 2 3
$ -3 209,537,237 $ - 3 209,537,237
$ - $ 209,537,237 $ -3 209,537,237
2023 11 30
2023 11 30
1 2 3
$ - % 194,507,856  $ -3 194,507,856
$ - $ 194,507,856 $ - $ 194,507,856
2024 11 30 2023 11 30 1 2 3
2 2
NAV
2
2024 11 30 2023 11 30
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2024 11 30 1
(i) 2024 11 30 2023 11 30
2
5.4
2024 11 30 2023 11 30 31,464,524,690
198,396,018 28,757,477,179 194,543,886 2024 11 30
31,215,966, 744
2023 11 30
28,438,094,136
28,464,284,868 26,190,732

2024 11
30 2023 11 30
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2024 11 30 1
6.
100%
2024 11 30 2023 11 30
7. /
2024 11 30 2023 11 30
$ (1,038,246) $ (142,983)
$ (1,038,246) $ (142,983)
/ $ 10,595,648  $ (2,544,607)

$ 10,595,648  $ (2,544,607)
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2024 11 30 1
8.
8.1
A
5 0.06% 5 0.05% 10
0.04%
3,750 2024 11 30 2023 11 30 1
2024 11 30 2023 11 30
B
2024 11 30 2023 11 30 2024
11 30 2023 11 30
C
0.25%
2024 11 30 2023 11 30
2024 11 30 2023 11 30
D
0.01% 1
10 2024 11 30 2023 11 30
2024 11 30 2023 11 30
E
2024 11 30 2023 11 30

2024 11 30 2023 11 30
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2024 11 30 1
8.2
A
10,000
2024 11 30 2023 11 30 2024 11 30
2023 11 30
B
0.20%
2024 11 30 2023 11 30 1
2024 11 30 2023 11 30
0.32%
C
0.12%
0.57%
2024 11 30 2023 11 30 2024 11

30 2023 11 30
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2024 11 30 1
(D
(i1)
Gii)
25
365
D
5,000
E
0.01%
2024 11 30 2023 11 30

2024 11 30 2023 11 30
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2024 11 30 1
9.
10%
2024 11 30 2023 11 30
10.
2025 4 29
2024 12 1 2025 4 29 4,037,402 8,577,118

1,097,190
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2024 12 31
( )

( \26,512,047,776) \ 31,500,285,086
( \247,449) 247,449

376,909,226
31,877,441,761

25,434,913
3,726,812
1,318,835
1,162,158
526,634
250,977
23,196

32,443,525

\ 31,844,998,236

\ 31,844,998,236

23,619,337

\ 1,348
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2024 12 31
( )

\ 1,194,319,860
1,194,319,860

99,967,803
15,139,594
6,320,732
4,455,144
3,158,970
2,101,405
702,102
131,845,750

C ) 1,062,474,110

C ) C )
C )
665,621,420
14,380,868
C ) 680,002,288

/C )

2,110,553,082
53,461,587
/C ) 2,164,014,669

/( ) 2,844,016,957

/( ) \ 3,906,491,067
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2024 12 31
( )
/C )
C ) \ 1,062,474,110
C ) 680,002,288
C ) 2,164,014,669
/C ) 3,906,491,067
(1,284,170,346)
/( ) 565,318,375
/( ) 3,187,639,096

23,162,741
516,823
974,493

(1,034,720)

456,596

23,619,337

\

661,035,000
1,284,170,346
(1,379,886,971)

/ \

565,318,375

114/223

28,657,359,140
\ 31,844,998,236




2024 12 31
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( )

1,237

/C )

/(

*k

/C )

Fk

/(

45
120

165
)

1,348

13.58%

31,844,998,236

0.42%
3.40%
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2024 12 31
(98.8%)
(11.5%)
(11.5%)
Adventist Health System
usb 1,000,000 5.76% 12/1/2034(2) \ 158,219,319
Advocate Health & Hospitals Corp.
1,000,000 3.83% 8/15/2028(2) 151,929,073
American University
1,000,000 3.12% 10/1/2027(2) 148,977,465
Association of American Medical Colleges
1,000,000 3.02% 10/1/2035 129,313,663
Baptist Health Obligated Group
1,000,000 3.57% 12/1/2034(2) 135,453,679
Baylor Scott & White Holdings
360,000 3.10% 11/15/2025(2) 55,657,192
Boston Medical Center Corp.
1,000,000 3.91% 7/1/2028 148,047,848
CommonSpirit Health
1,398,000 4.19%  10/1/2049(2) 172,172,555
Comell University
1,000,000 4.84% 6/15/2034(2) 154,135,928
Jackson Laboratory
2,000,000 3.64% 7/1/2025 312,094,252
Kaiser Foundation Hospitals
2,900,000 3.15% 5/1/2027(2) 441,164,855
LBJ Infrastructure Group LLC
4,000,000 3.80% 12/31/2057(2) , (b) 422,655,240
Leland Stanford Junior University
2,000,000 3.65% 5/1/2048(2) 243,084,360
Low Income Investment Fund
250,000 3.39% 7/1/2026() 38,053,260
NYU Langone Hospitals
350,000 4.43% 7/1/2042() 47,069,139
University of Southern California
2,000,000 4.98% 10/1/2053(2) 294,167,912
UPMC
1,000,000 5.38% 5/15/2043(2) 152,119,177
Virginia Power Fuel Securitization LLC
3,000,000 4.88% 5/1/2031 471,039,182
3,215,149,910 3,675,354,099
3,215,149,910 3,675,354,099
(87.3%)
(87.3%)
Alabama Federal Aid Highway Finance Authority, Revenue Bonds
600,000 2.65% 9/1/2037(2) 73,462,199
American Municipal Power, Inc., Revenue Bonds
35,000 7.20% 2/15/2029 5,974,603
370,000 7.73% 2/15/2033 66,251,476
Arizona Department of Transportation State Highway Fund Revenue, Revenue Bonds
730,000 3.17% 7/1/2038(2) 92,248,006
Augusta GA, General Obligation Bonds
1,000,000 5.05% 10/1/2042(2) 149,372,853
Bay Area Toll Authority, Revenue Bonds
835,000 2.32% 4/172033(2) 107,785,708
California Educational Facilities Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 3.11% 4/1/2028(2) 150,022,925
1,500,000 3.79% 4/1/2042(a) 182,947,283
California Infrastructure & Economic Development Bank, Revenue Bonds
1,155,000 2.54% 7/1/2031 157,742,666
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2024 12 31
(98.8%)
(87.3%)
(87.3%)
usb 1,250,000 2.72% 10/1/2040(2) \ 145,776,716
California State Public Works Board, Revenue Bonds
475,000 7.80% 3/1/2035 83,066,047
California State University, Revenue Bonds
2,375,000 2.80% 11/1/2041(2) 267,115,916
California Statewide Communities Development Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 1.21% 2/1/2027 147,096,554
750,000 1.81% 2/1/2030 102,402,677
Central Puget Sound Regional Transit Authority, Revenue Bonds
305,000 5.49% 11/1/2039 47,887,546
Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority, Revenue Bonds
2,000,000 2.27% 1/1/2030 279,452,779
565,000 3.29% 1/1/2042(2) 69,098,899
Central Texas Tumpike System, Revenue Bonds
450,000 3.03% 8/15/2041(2) 52,203,739
Chicago O"Hare International Airport, Revenue Bonds
500,000 1.70% 1/1/2026 76,567,211
550,000 4.47% 1/1/2049 75,741,970
Chicago Transit Authority Sales & Transfer Tax Receipts Revenue, Revenue
Bonds
366,034 6.90% 12/1/2040 63,360,910
City of Amarillo TX Hotel Occupancy Tax Revenue, Revenue Bonds
505,000 3.85% 8/15/2028(2) 76,557,602
250,000 4.05% 8/15/2031(2) 36,794,799
1,815,000 4.20% 8/15/2038(2) 248,631,432
City of Arlington TX Special Tax Revenue, Special Tax Bonds
220,000 3.67% 2/15/2026 34,323,262
City of Bridgeport CT, General Obligation Bonds
500,000 3.65% 9/15/2039(2) 64,390,229
City of Dearborn MI, General Obligation Bonds
1,000,000 4.33% 5/1/2032(2) 151,544,590
City of Downey CA, Revenue Bonds
450,000 1.75% 6/1/2029 62,151,141
550,000 1.85% 6/1/2030 73,936,743
825,000 1.95% 6/1/2031(2) 108,079,600
City of EI Cajon CA, Revenue Bonds
1,600,000 2.79% 4/1/2036(2) 196,751,927
City of Holland M1, General Obligation Bonds
900,000 4.14% 8/1/2032(2) 134,025,008
City of Houston TX Combined Uti lity System Revenue, Revenue Bonds
300,000 3.83% 5/15/2028 46,476,449
City of Houston TX, General Obligation Bonds
1,795,000 3.96% 3/1/2047 237,353,629
City of Jersey City NJ, General Obligation Bonds
350,000 3.76% 9/1/2033 50,389,424
City of Kansas City MO, Revenue Bonds
500,000 4.38% 10/1/2032(2) 74,323,166
City of Memphis TN, General Obligation Bonds
60,000 5.26% 7/1/2025 9,446,463
City of Monterey Park CA, Revenue Bonds
225,000 1.79% 6/1/2029 31,214,593
250,000 1.89% 6/1/2030 33,792,302
300,000 1.99% 6/1/2031 39,557,489
City of New Orleans LA, General Obligation Bonds
250,000 3.17% 12/1/2025 38,885,311
City of New York NY, General Obligation Bonds
750,000 2.47% 8/1/2037(2) 87,299,996
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2024 12 31
(98.8%)
(87.3%)
(87.3%)
usD 900,000 3.60% 8/1/2028(3) \ 136,773,113
1,000,000 5.26% 10/1/2052 152,650,164
1,000,000 5.85% 6/1/2040 158,851,475
City of Oklahoma City OK, General Obligation Bonds
1,280,000 3.50% 3/1/2039(2) 165,699,458
City of Phoenix Civic Improvement Corp., Revenue Bonds
1,500,000 2.56% 7/1/2040(2) 172,416,632
City of Rio Rancho NM Gross Receipts Tax Revenue, Revenue Bonds
375,000 1.93% 6/1/2031(3) 49,294,304
450,000 2.03% 6/1/2032(2) 57,782,429
City of Riverside CA, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 3.86% 6/1/2045(2) 133,411,593
City of San Francisco CA Public Utilities Commission Water
Revenue, Revenue Bonds
460,000 3.30% 11/1/2039(2) 59,126,420
City of Springdale AR Sales & Use Tax Revenue, Revenue Bonds
1,850,000 5.10% 8/1/2030(2) 294,621,857
City of Tempe AZ, Certificate Participation
3,300,000 2.59% 7/1/2037(2) 393,685,166
City of Tucson AZ, Certificate Participation
65,000 6.30% 7/1/2025 10,316,078
City of Worcester MA, General Obligation Bonds
2,805,000 3.50% 1/15/2032(2) 406,900,981
City of Yuma AZ, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 1.95% 7/15/2029 140,216,116
Colorado Bridge Enterprise, Revenue Bonds
275,000 6.08% 12/1/2040 45,136,661
Commonwealth Financing Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,155,000 3.66% 6/1/2038 156,698,243
2,015,000 3.86% 6/1/2038 281,448,015
1,165,000 5.20% 6/1/2026 184,659,878
Commonwealth of Massachusetts, General Obligation Bonds
1,965,000 2.51% 7/1/2041(®) 230,238,362
Commonwealth of Massachusetts, Revenue Bonds
2,000,000 3.77% 7/15/2029 304,390,897

Connecticut State Health & Educational Facilities Authority,
Revenue Bonds

500,000 3.36% 7/1/2028 74,484,682
Contra Costa County Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency, Tax
Allocation

300,000 3.00% 8/1/2025 46,742,637
Cook County School District No 159 Matteson-Richton Park, General
Obligation Bonds

1,615,000 2.94% 12/1/2033(2) 215,261,850
County of Cook IL, General Obligation Bonds
525,000 6.23% 11/15/2034 85,755,310
230,000 6.31% 11/15/2031 37,832,662
955,000 6.36% 11/15/2033 158,292,781
County of Fresno CA, Revenue Bonds
1,200,000 0.00% 8/15/2025(C) 183,184,365
County of Jackson MI, General Obligation Bonds
1,000,000 3.53% 12/1/2028(2) 150,609,010
County of Miami-Dade FL Aviation Revenue, Revenue Bonds
2,000,000 3.18% 10/1/2028 298,165,544
County of Miami-Dade Seaport Department, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 6.22% 11/1/2055(2) 162,858,435
County of Tulare CA, Revenue Bonds
1,610,000 4.31% 6/1/2033(2) 239,800,653
Dallas Area Rapid Transit, Revenue Bonds
1,495,000 6.00% 12/1/2044 238,721,805
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Dallas Fort Worth International Airport, Revenue Bonds
usb 2,085,000 2.99% 11/1/2038 \ 268,833,613
Downtown Smyma Development Authority, Revenue Bonds
600,000 5.45% 2/1/2038(2) 93,011,345
Empire State Development Corp., Revenue Bonds
2,000,000 3.37% 3/15/2030(2) 293,611,722
Foothill-Eastern Transportation Corridor Agency, Revenue Bonds
750,000 2.96% 1/15/2046(2) 81,387,316
1,750,000 3.92% 1/15/2053(2) 211,021,841
Gerald R Ford International Airport Authority, Revenue Bonds
2,000,000 5.50% 1/1/2053(2) 311,209,264
Golden State Tobacco Securitization Corp., Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 2.53% 6/1/2028 145,427,476
Grand Parkway Transportation Corp., Revenue Bonds
700,000 3.01% 10/1/2039(2) 85,107,510
I11inois Housing Development Authority, Revenue Bonds
520,000 5.19% 4/1/2033(2) 80,920,316
Indiana Bond Bank, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 3.11% 8/1/2028(2) 149,930,543
Indiana Finance Authority, Revenue Bonds
500,000 3.62% 7/1/2036(3) 69,167,237
JobsOhio Beverage System, Revenue Bonds
2,075,000 2.83% 1/1/2038 258,876,900
2,105,000 3.99% 1/1/2029 327,055,485
Kansas Development Finance Authority, Revenue Bonds
40,000 4.3% 4/15/2030 6,160,034
985,000 4.73% 4/15/2037 148,243,788
Kentucky Economic Development Finance Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 5.08% 8/15/2048 140,159,530
La Quinta Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency, Tax Allocation
605,000 4.53% 9/1/2039(2) 85,443,465
Louisiana Local Government Environmental Facilities & Community
Development Auth, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 3.39% 9/1/2034(2) 138,997,338
Massachusetts Educational Financing Authority, Revenue Bonds
500,000 3.51% 7/1/2029 73,993,007
1,500,000 4.04% 7/1/2026 233,857,461
Massachusetts Water Resources Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 3.22 % 8/1/2044(2) 116,918,367
Metropolitan Government Nashville & Davidson County Sports
Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 3.02% 8/1/2040(2) 121,283,606
Metropolitan Knoxville Airport Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,250,000 5.22 % 6/1/2044(2) 186,122,765
200,000 5.23 % 6/1/2039(2) 30,467,897
Metropolitan St Louis Sewer District, Revenue Bonds
750,000 3.16% 5/1/2038(2) 95,733,805

Metropolitan Washington Airports Authority Dulles Toll Road
Revenue, Revenue Bonds
500,000 8.00% 10/1/2047 97,774,056
Metropolitan Water Reclamation District of Greater Chicago, General
Obligation Bonds

410,000 5.72% 12/1/2038 64,685,843
Michigan Finance Authority, Revenue Bonds
3,500,000 2.67% 9/1/2049(2) , (d) 523,385,664
Michigan State Building Authority, Revenue Bonds
4,000,000 2.71% 10/15/2040(2) 464,637,712
Minneapolis-St Paul Metropolitan Airports Commission, Revenue Bonds
2,000,000 3.90% 1/1/2030(2) 299,867,276
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Municipal Electric Authority of Georgia, Revenue Bonds
usb 48,000 6.66% 4/1/2057 \ 8,091,704
Muskegon County Building Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 3.86% 11/1/2032(2) 145,661,834
Nebraska Public Power District, Revenue Bonds
250,000 3.05% 1/1/2028 37,546,494
New Hampshire Business Finance Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 4.02% 9/1/2055(2) 118,425,497
New Jersey Economic Development Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,425,000 0.00% due 2/15/2025(C) 222,554,508
750,000 3.47% 6/15/2027 114,760,494
1,000,000 4.98% 3/1/2027 157,712,320
New Jersey Higher Education Student Assistance Authority,
Revenue Bonds
125,000 3.25% 12/1/2030(2) 18,800,297
New Jersey Housing & Mortgage Finance Agency, Revenue Bonds
200,000 5.47% 4/1/2033(2) 31,755,926
New Jersey Institute of Technology, Revenue Bonds
500,000 4.18% 7/1/2037(2) 71,466,093
New Jersey Turnpike Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 3.73% 1/1/2036 137,271,706
500,000 7.10% 1/1/2041 87,745,169
1,000,000 7.41% 1/1/2040 180,019,144
New York City Housing Development Corp., Revenue Bonds
2,910,000 2.10% 5/1/2031(2) 384,127,009
New York City Industrial Development Agency, Revenue Bonds
1,250,000 2.34% 1/1/2035 150,153,930
New York City Municipal Water Finance Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 5.72% 6/15/2042 154,339,671
1,000,000 6.01% 6/15/2042 159,181,783
New York City Transitional Finance Authority Future Tax
Secured Revenue, Revenue Bonds
2,700,000 1.71% 11/1/2028 380,744,192
1,050,000 3.04% 8/1/2027 158,959,810
655,000 5.51% 8/1/2037 101,475,083
New York City Transitional Finance Authority, Revenue Bonds
750,000 5.11% 5/1/2036(2) 115,382,261
New York State Dormitory Authority, Revenue Bonds
2,000,000 2.22% 7/1/2035 250,877,624
1,205,000 3.11% 2/15/2039 153,610,065
300,000 3.27% 7/1/2026 46,108,572
New York State Thruway Authority, Revenue Bonds
425,000 2.90% 1/1/2035 57,019,638
North Texas Tollway Authority, Revenue Bonds
500,000 3.08% 1/1/2042(2) 57,915,063
Ohio Turnpike & Infrastructure Commission, Revenue Bonds
2,350,000 3.22% 2/15/2048(2) 268,305,825
Oklahoma Municipal Power Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,870,000 2.43% 1/1/2034 241,218,211
Oregon School Boards Association, General Obligation Bonds
200,000 5.68% 6/30/2028 31,956,720
Palmdale Elementary School District, Special Tax Bonds
650,000 3.25% 8/1/2027 98,415,009
1,080,000 3.50% 8/1/2028 162,223,881
Pennsylvania Economic Development Financing Authority, Revenue
Bonds
1,000,000 3.20% 11/15/2027 150,589,823
Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency, Revenue Bonds
300,000 5.56% 10/1/2034(2) 47,517,957
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Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission, Revenue Bonds
usb 250,000 2.93% 12/1/2025 \ 38,777,443
1,000,000 3.09 % 12/1/2038(2) 122,795,089
255,000 5.56 % 12/1/2049 38,704,321
Permanent University Fund — Texas A&M University System, Revenue Bonds
1,550,000 3.66 % 7/1/2047() 196,799,554
Philadelphia Authority for Industrial Development, Revenue Bonds
320,000 6.35% 4/15/2028 52,231,516
Port Authority of New York & New Jersey, Revenue Bonds
540,000 3.14% 2/15/2051(2) 59,877,124
1,500,000 4.43% 10/15/2034(2) 222,430,429
2,000,000 5.07% 7/15/2053 297,265,101
405,000 5.31 % 8/1/2046(2) 60,761,978
Port of Seattle WA, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 2.15% 8/1/2031 132,679,980
Redevelopment Authority of the City of Philadelphia, Revenue Bonds
2,000,000 5.44 % 9/1/2037(2) 312,743,171
Regents of the University of California Medical Center Pooled Revenue,
Revenue Bonds
510,000 6.46 % 5/15/2029 82,167,584
Rhode Island Housing & Mortgage Finance Corp., Revenue Bonds
125,000 1.99% 10/1/2028 17,815,565
Rhode Island Turnpike & Bridge Authority, Revenue Bonds
635,000 3.16 % 12/1/2033(2) 85,127,471
1,375,000 3.46% 12/1/2039(2) 172,686,267
Riverside County Infrastructure Financing Authority, Revenue Bonds
250,000 3.19% 11/1/2041(2) 29,662,909
Sales Tax Securitization Corp., Revenue Bonds
2,000,000 3.59 % 1/1/2043 257,999,712
San Diego County Regional Airport Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,100,000 3.10% 7/1/2043(2) 129,119,916
San Diego County Regional Transportation Commission, Revenue Bonds
1,120,000 3.20% 4/1/2039(2) 142,203,390
San Francisco City & County Public Utilities Commission Wastewater
Revenue, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 5.09 % 10/1/2037(2) 152,799,620
San Jose Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency, Tax Allocation
955,000 3.38 % 8/1/2034(2) 133,301,930
South Carolina Public Service Authority, Revenue Bon
1,000,000 6.45 % 1/1/2050 168,765,971
South Central Connecticut Regional Water Authority, Revenue Bonds
2,800,000 3.04 % 8/1/2033(2) 381,762,579
State of California, General Obligation Bonds
655,000 5.13% 3/1/2038(2) 100,732,776
1,000,000 5.88 Y% 10/1/2041(2) 162,460,698
2,250,000 7.50 % 4/1/2034 403,367,883
2,750,000 7.55% 4/1/2039 510,797,917
2,395,000 7.60% 11/1/2040 448,173,029
State of Connecticut, General Obligation Bonds
2,000,000 4.61% 5/15/2029 313,438,264
State of Hawaii, General Obligation Bonds
1,000,000 5.75% 10/1/2034(2) 164,863,792
State of Illinois, General Obligation Bonds
3,440,000 5.10% due 6/1/2033 532,934,386
650,000 5.11% due 5/1/2027 102,916,302
State of Oregon, General Obligation Bonds
1,000,000 5.49% due 5/1/2042(2) 159,651,396
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State of Texas, General Obligation Bonds
Usb 275,000 4.68% 10/1/2031 \ 43,197,486
State of Wisconsin, Revenue Bonds
4,255,000 3.95% 5/1/2036(2) 606,559,239
Texas Natural Gas Securitization Finance Corp., Revenue Bonds
926,906 5.10% 4/1/2035 145,959,607
Texas Private Activity Bond Surface Transportation Corp., Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 3.92% 12/31/2049 124,324,957
Triborough Bridge & Tunnel Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 2.59% 5/15/2036(2) 123,189,510
Tri-County Metropolitan Transportation District of Oregon, Revenue Bonds
2,400,000 2.86% 9/1/2041() 276,365,789
Tulsa Airports Improvement Trust, Revenue Bonds
500,000 3.45% 6/1/2026 77,353,202
University of California, Revenue Bonds
450,000 5.63% 7/1/2044(2) 71,113,894
University of Virginia, Revenue Bonds
544,000 6.20% 9/1/2039 90,026,592
Utah Housing Corp., Revenue Bonds
220,000 3.38% 1/1/2039(2) 32,773,412
800,000 5.23% 1/1/2034(2) 124,604,289
Vermont Student Assistance Corp., Revenue Bonds
30,000 3.50% 6/15/2029(2) 4,526,485
Virginia Housing Development Authority, Revenue Bonds
270,000 2.51% 2/1/2040(2) 31,545,833
Virginia Housing Development Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,500,000 3.33% 4/1/2040(2) 185,548,366
Virginia Resources Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 2.75% 11/1/2034(2) 130,315,212
West Covina Public Financing Authority, Revenue Bonds
250,000 2.98% 8/1/2029 36,416,108
1,000,000 3.74% 8/1/2038(2) 134,574,476
( \23,260,933,308)) 27,788,966,429
( \23,260,933,308) 27,788,966,429
(¢ \26,476,083,218) 31,464,320,528
(0.1%)
(0.1%)
(0.1%)
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corp.
usb 219,885 3.58% 01/02/2025 34,552,713
( \34,552,713) 34,552,713
(0.0%)
DNB Bank ASA
EUR 73 1.71% 01/02/2025 11,838
( \11,838) 11,838
(0.0%)*
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Ltd.
JPY 1,400,007 (0.01)% 01/06/2025 1,400,007
( \1,400,007) 1,400,007
( \35,964,558) 35,964,558
(¢ \35,964,558) 35,964,558
( \26,512,047,776) 98.9% \ 31,500,285,086

1.1% 344,713,150
100.0%  \ 31,844,998,236

122/223



2024 12 31

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@

0.05%

() 1444 1933

©
©)

144 A

(W)

0.05%

EUR
JPY
usb

0.2%
2.5%
0.9%
18.3%
1%
6%
3%
.5%
8%
.5%
.5%
%
.5%
.4%
.6%
.3%
9%
9%
5%
1%
4%
4%
.3%
.6%
9%
.T%
5%
4%
9%
.5%
1%
1%
5%
0.0%*
1.4%
0.6%
1.9%

O\lHOObHHN::OLOOOOO(H#OOOO(DOOD—'OI\)O

\ 73,462,199
808,881,998
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5,801,403,179
45,136,661
834,075,754
97,774,056
461,023,979
250,475,902
164,863,792
1,752,269,253
219,097,780
154,403,822
140,159,530
177,882,649
1,366,299,075
1,881,073,082
299,867,276
170,056,971
37,546,494
118,425,497
1,072,475,081
107,076,733
3,704,690,250
926,464,289
555,384,765
467,973,905
1,386,165,456
275,629,303
168,765,971
347,320,731
2,241,752,185
157,377,701
4,526,485
437,436,003
180,567,526
606,559,239

87.3%

\ 27,788,966,429
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US Munlcipal Bond Fund
Statement of Financlal Positlon
Movember 30, 2024

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Asaots Movember 30, 2024 Hovember 30, 2023
Financial assats of falr value through profit or loas (Note 2.2, 5) H 208,537 237 -] 184,507 BEE
Cash and cash squivalents (Mot 2.1} 6,842 128 5,977 454
Rucalvablos far
Units lssued (Mote 2.10, 3) 68,564 1,186,638
Other assets 36,015 23 415
Tolsl sszats 218,285 Odd 201,704, 364
Liabii i
Payabies for:
Fea agont fees (Note B.2C) 245,745 329 677
Units mpurchased (Nots 2.8, 2.10, 3) 158, B03 184,774
Professlcnal fess (Mote 8.1E) T8 882 &82.5815
Dilstribution fees (Mote 8.1C) 43, BET 40,408
Custody foes (Mets 8,.18) 43530 83,838
Administraler foes (Mole 8.1A4) 12,378 35278
Printing feoa 3,102 5458
Agant membar company fass (Now 8.2E) BAB 8,082
Transfar agent foos (Noba 8. 1D) 5289 TET
Ragisiration foas it £30
Imvestment managoemont foes (Note 2.88) - 84 888
Liabiites (mocluding equity) B45 811 788 353
Equity (baing nat assats attributabie to the holder of units) $ 215,638 133 5 200,908 011

The sccompanying nobes are an inlegral part of these financial satemants.
1
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US Municipal Bond Fund
Statement of Comprehenalve Income
Far the Year Ended November 30, 2024

(Expressed in U.S. Doflars)

income _November 30,2024 _November 30,2023
Net incomaijoss) from financial instruments at FYTPLY
Dividend income (Nots 2.11) 3 BAT197TR -3 7826372
Interest incomea (MNote 2.11) 273,033 240,528

Nt reaiized (loss) on financial assets and Kabilties at fair value

thimugh profit or loas (Mots 2.11, 7) {1,038,248) (142,983}
Mat change In unrealized apprecistion/(deprecistion] on
financial aseety and Eabilties ad fair value through profit or kas
(Note 2.2, 211, 7) 10,505 548 (2 544, BOT)
Total income 18,302 414 5,188,307
Expanses
Fee agent fees (Mote 8.24, 8.2C) 1,351,900 1,293,008
Dstribution fees (Mole 8.1C) 528,018 A8 481
Invvestrment management fees (Mo 6.28) Ha 985 374, TAS
Administrator fees (Nate 8.14) 131,040 112,436
Transfer sgent fees (Nole 8.10) 64,361 21,137
Professional fees (Nobe 8.1E) 57,106 65,561
Printing fess 47 545 21,897
Custody fees (Nate 8.18) 40,273 7,435
Agent member company fees (Note 8.2E) 21,121 18,738
Total expentes 2 556 458 2483 475
Operating profit 16,745 048 2,734 828
Tokal com income (being increese in net assets sttribuisble
to the holder of units from operations) 3 15,745,548 5 2,734 828

M This relates o nst incorms from financial instruments measured at fair valus through profl or lces (FYTPL) including realized and
unmalized gains/{losses) on financiel assets and lebilties at fair value through profit or loss, dividend income and inferest
Incams,

The accompanying nobes are an inlegral part of these financial slatemaents.
2
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US Munliclpal Bond Fund

Statement of Changes In Equity
Far the Year Ended November 30, 2024

(Expressed in U.S. Doflars)

Al Novernber 30, 2022 § 165758 981
lesue of unita (Mode ) 52,369,147
Reépurchases of units (Note 2.8, 3) (17,510,263}
Distributions (Nabe 2.7) {2 442 563)
Total comprehensive income (being increase in net sasets
attributable to the holder of units from epsrations) 734,828
At November 30, 2023 § 200808011
Issue of units (Mote 3) 21,849,881
Repurchases of units (Mote 2.8, 3) (20,006,778}
Déstributions (Nobe 2.7) {2 B5T,T0T)
Tetal comprehensive incoma (being increass in nel sasets
attributable to the holder of units from cpemtions) 15,745 948
umu!,m: E ] 219&13&

The accompanying nabes are an irtegral part of these financial stabsmants.
3
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(Expressed in U.S. Doflars)

Cash flows from operating sctivities:
Total sive income (being increass in nel sssets altributable
to the holder of units from operations)

Adjusiments to reconcdile total comprehensive incomad{loss) (being
Increasaidecrease) in net sssats atirbutable bo the holder of units
from oparations) to cash (used In)provided by cparating activites:
Purchases of invastrmant In the Seieched Fund
Procends from disposition of investment in the Selectad Fund
Nat realtred loss on Snancisl assets and Nablities af falr valss through
profit or loss
Net change in (appreciation)deprecistion on financial
mmlmmrMWMwhﬂm
Decreass in receivables for securities sokd
{Incrasse) in other assets
{Decreasa)incraase in other payables™

Hat canh provided by/{used in) cperating activithes

Caah fiowa from Minancing activitiea:

Proceeds from units isswed, net of change in mcelvables for unie
Insusd

Repurchases of units, net of change in payables for units repurchased
Distributiona paid to the holder of units, nel of changs in payables for
distributions to the holder of units

ot cash provided by financing activities
Hel increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash squivalents ai beginning of year (Mote 2.1}
Cash and cash squivalonts at ond of year [Mote 2.1)

Supplernantary Information on cash flows from operaling activities
Intarost recedved
Dévidonds recebed

O Other payables comprise of fee agent foes, disirdbution fees, Investment management foss, administrator foes, custody
transfer apent foes, agan! mamber company foss, registration fess, professlonal fees and printing fees as disdosed In

Staternent of Financial Position.

Movember 30, 2024 MNovember 30, 2023

5 15,745048 8 2,734,828
(12,871,578} (38,326,372)
7,500,000 1,000,000
1,038,246 142,883
(10,555,648} 2,544 60T
= 2,800,000
(13,600} (8.910)
{121,571} 48,807
581,304 {27,064 05T}
22,776,638 51,848,731
(20,035,843} (20,227,775)
(2,857,707} [2442082)
83,280 28,976,264
BE4,6T4 1,912,297
5,877,454 4,085,217
5 8842128 % 5,977 454
s 273033 % 245,525
5 BATLETH % 7,626,372

if

The accompanying nobes are an inlegral part of these financial slatemants.
4
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US Municipal Bond Fund
MNotes to Financlal Statements
Far the Year Ended November 30, 2024

(Expressed in U.S. Doflars)
1. ORGANIZATION

US Municipal Bond Fund (the “Serias Trust™) is a Sares Trusl of UBS Universal Trusl (Cayman) Il {the “Trust?), an
oper-ended umbrella unit trust constituted by a Master Trust Deed dated December 2, 2013 under Cayman [skands
lrw. The Series Trust was astablishad pursuant to a Supplemental Trust Desd dated Oclobar 3, 2016 and exacuted
by Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited (the “Trustese®), a trusl company incorporated under the lows of the Cayman
Ilands. The manager of the Series Trust is UB3S MWWUmM[ﬂHHM The Seres Trust
commencad oparstions on Novembar 18, 2016,

The Trusl is an exempled unil trust under the Trusts Act (a3 Revised) of the Cayman Istands and registered under
the Mistual Funds Act (as Revisad) of the Cayman |slands on January 22, 2014,

The principal office for the Trustee (and therefore the Series Trusl) is One Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman
K 1-9005, Cayman lslands.

Thia Adménistrator, Custodian and Transfer Agent of the Seres Trust iz Brown Brothers Hamman & Co. (the
“Administrater”, “Custodian” and "Transfer Agart”).

From May 31, 2024, UBS AG, London Branch ((UBS AG") acts as the Fee Agent (the “Fee Agent?). Prior fo thet date,
Credit Suisse International aclad as the Fee Agant

From May 31, 2024, UBS Securities Japan Co. Lid. acts as the Agent Member Company (lhe “Ageni Membesr
Comparny”). Prior to that date, Credit Sulsse Securities (Japan) Limited, scted as the Agent Member Company.

The Imvestment Manager of the Serdea Trust is Sumilomo Miteul DS Asset Management Company Limited (the
“Investmant Manager”).

The Manager has authorized Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation to aci &s the Distributor (the "Distributor”) of the
units in Japan.

Ona class of units in the Sarea Trust is currantly available for issue: Clasa A Units (the “Class A Units™). The Sares
Trust and the Class A Units are denominated in U, 8. Dollars ("USD" or "§7).

mmmwmmm&ummlmwwmwmm
in United States municipal secunties (the "Municipal Bonds™). The Series Trust seeks fo achieve Hs investment

objactive by imvesting substantially all of tha assats of tha Saries Trust into the USD dass of units of Municipal Cora
Fund (the "Selected Fund™).

The Selected Fund |8 a seres trust of Income Invesiment Truel, & Cayman lslands umbrella unit trust (the "SF
Trusl®). The Sebectad Fund & registerad a8 a8 Mutual Fund under the Mutual Funds Act (as amandad) of the Cayman
Islands and the SF Trust has obtained a tax exemption certificate from the Cayman lslands Government. Neither the
unils of the SF Trust, nor the Selectad Fund have bean or will ba registenad under United States Securities Act 1833
and the Selected Fund has not been and will not be registered under the United States Company Act of 1840, The
inveatment objective of the Selected Fund is to seek current income and capital appreciation by investing principally
in United States municipal sacurities,

In ordar o pursue its investment objactive, Neubarger Bemman Investment Advisers LLC (e "Investment Manager of
the Selected Fund™) utilizes a multi-disciplinary combination of deep fundamental bottom-up analysis and macro
investimant principles 1o invest in bonds raled Baa/BBEB - or highar and issued by municipalies domicilad in the
United States. The Selected Fund intends to hold high-rated securities (the highest rating has to be Baa2/BBB- or
higher with refarence to Moody's, Standard & Poor's and Fitch). In ils discrelion, the Investment Manager of the
Salacted Fund salls securities whosa cradit rating fall to Ba1/88+ or below, dapending on market condition.

Tha Investment Manager of the Sefes Trust shall have day-to-day investmant dacision-making and ongoing
maniioring responsibilRy over the portion of the Series Trust's portiolio comprising the Selected Fund and USD cash,
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(Expressed in U.S. Doflars)

maney market securithes and forward contracts (the “Subadvized Portiolio™). The Subadvised Portfollo may gensrats
a certain amount of income each month. Such income is distributed fo the unitholder on each distribution date.

At November 30, 2024 and November 30, 2023, the Series Trust held 100.0% of the Selecied Fund's nel asesets,

Currently the Selected Fund has two Classes — Class A JPY Hedged Cless and Class C USD Unhedged Class; of
units being ofierad to investors which have baan established for cerain Japaness investment Trusts, All Classes ars
subscribed to in Japanese Yen of US Dollars. Class A seeks to be hedged back fo Japanese Yen and Class C is not
hedged againel USD denominated assets. The Series Trust invests into the Selected Fund by punchasing the
Selected Fund's redeemable participsting shares in the Class C USD Unhedged Cless. The Selected Fund allows
repurchases of these shares on any business day.

Movements in the fair value of the Selected Fund's portfolio and comesponding movements in the fair value of the
Salaciad Fund may axpose the Saries Trust to a loss.

Final Repurchass Day
Tha Sedes Trust will cominue until the earier of Decambar 1, 2163 and the eadiest practicable repurchass day

following the occurrence of a compulsary repurchase evenl (the “Final Repurchase Day”), unless lerminated earber in
sccordance with the provisions of tha Trust Deed.

The units are compulsorly repurchasad upon the first to occur of any of the following:

m tha nel assal value on any valuation day is $3,000,000 or less and on that valustion day or thereaftar the

Manager determines that all of the units should be compulsorly repurchased by giving notice to all
unitholders; or

i)} the Trustee and the Menager agreeing that all of the unils should be compulsorily repurchased, (each
a "Compuisory Repurchase Event”).

Upon the cocurrance of a Compulsory Repurchass Everl, each unil is repurchasasd on the Final Repurchase Day at
the final repurchase price par unit. The final repurchase price per unit is calculated by the Administrator in its sale

discralion in accordance with the Cffaring Memorandum and the Appendix 25 as the Nat Asssat Valua par unit on tha
Final Repurchase Day (or if such day is not also a valuation day the immedistely preceding valustion day).
Repurchase Day is each dealing day which is slsc a day on which no Series Trust disruption event ocours andfor
such olher day or days as the Manager may from time Lo time datermine in respact of the Senes Trust. Unitholder is
able to receine an amourt in respect of each unit repurchased on any Repurchase Day prior fo the Final Repurchase
Day equal to the MNet Asset Value per unit as at the relevant Repurchase Day (or if that Repurchase Day is not also
a valustion day the immedistely preceding veluation day) (fhe *Repurchase Price™). There is no repunchase fee
applied lo the Repurchass Price in respect of each unit being

On March 19, 2023, UBS Group AG [UBS") agreed to acquire Credit Suisse Group AG ("Credii Suisse) following
intarvention by the Swiss Fadaral Departmant of Finance, the Swiss National Bank and the Swiss Financial Market

Supenvisory Authary (FINMA).

On June 12, MUBBEMMMMWHHM ofﬂnmllﬁmufﬂmdﬂ&ﬁ;mﬁm.uﬁﬂbym
ol a stalutory merger. As a result of the closing, Credit Suisse Group AG ceasad o exist, and Credit Suisse AG
became a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of UBS Group AG. One of the key steps of the imtegration is the legal
maiger of UBS AG and Cradil Suists AG (tha "Parent Bank Mergar®). The Parent Bank Marger is 8 stahulory manges
by abscrption under Swiss law, whereby UBS AG will be the surviving entity and Credit Suizse AG will cease lo exist
upon completion of the merger. Al this point in time, in principle, all assets, liabilities and contracts of Credil Suisse
AG and its branches will automatically transfer to UBS AG (and its branches as the cass may be) by operation of law
(in other words by “universal sucoession’). As a resull, UBS AG will aulomatically take over all the rights and
rsapons|biites from Cradil Sulsas AG. The Parenl Bank Marger was comphatad with affact from May 31, 2024

Following & Special rasolution dated February 1, 2024, the Manager changed its name and is now incomparaled undear
the name of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited. The Master Trust Deed was revised through a Deed of
Amendmant on Manch 1, 2024,

On February 28, 2024, the Trustes resolved to change the narme of the Trust from Cradit Suisse Universal Trust
(Cayman) i to UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) Il
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The Seres Trust has no axposure related to investments in financial assets with UBS AG.
The financial ststements were autharized for issue by the Trusles on April 29, 2025,

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Tha principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial sistemants are sat oul balow. Thess
policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless ctherwise stated. The finandal
stataments have been preparsd in accordance with Intemational IFRS Accounting Standards (IFRS"). The
preparation of finandal sislements in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards requires the use of cerlain critical

sslimates and requires the Trusies and the Manager to exaercise their judgmant in the process of applying
the Series Trust's accoumting policies. Areas where assumptions and estimales are significant to the financial
statements are disclosaed in Note 4. Actual results may differ from thase sstimates.

The Seres Trust has adopled Investment Entities (Amendments to IFRS Accounting Standard 10, IFRS Accounting
Standard 12 and LAS 27) (2012) (the Amendmants). Management concluded that the Seriss Trust meets the
definition of an imestment entity.

Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial llablites

IFRS Accounting Stendard 9 contains thwee principal classification categories for financial sssets: measured at
amorized cost, fair value through profit and loes (FVTPL) and fair value through other comprehsnsive incoma
(FWOCH). The classification of financial assats under IFRS Accounting Stancard 9 |s genarally based on the business
maodel in which a financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flow characledstics.
On inital recogniden, the Seres Trust dassifies financial esseis as measured at amorized cost or FVTPL.
A financial asset is maasured at amortized cost if it meats both of the following conditions and is nol designated as at
FVTPL:
i} Itis held within & business modal whose objective is to hold assats to collect contraciual cash flows;
and,
i) Its confractual terma give rise on specified dates to cash fiows that ara solely reprasent paymants. of
principal and interest (SPPI).

A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss if any of the following apply:

i} s contractual terma do not give fse to cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPT) on the principal amount outstanding;

iy It is not held within a business modal whosa objactive is either to collect confractual cash flows, or fo
both collact contractual cash flows and sall;

iily At inttial recognition, it i imevocably designated as measured &t FVTPL when doing 80 aliminaies or
significantly reduces & messuramenl or recognition inconsistancy that would otherwies arse from
maasuring assets or liabilites or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases.

In =asessing whather tha contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Seras Trust conaiders the coniractual tarma of tha
instrument. This includes essessing whether the financial asset containg a contractual term thetl could change the
timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assesament, the
Series Trusl considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or iming of cash flows;
= leverage features;
- prapaymant and extension features;

- terms that limit the Seres Trust's claim to cash flows from spacified assets (8.g. non-recourse featuras);
and

- features that modify consideration of the time valus of money (e.g. periodical reset of interest rates).
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Tha Seres Trust has determinad that i has two business models:

- Held-to=collect business modal: this includes cash and cash equivalants, receivables for units issuad
and olher assels. Thesa financial assels ane held to collect contraciual cash flow.

- Othaer business model: this includes financial assets ot fair value through profit or loas (Investment in the
Selecied Fund). Thess financial assals are managed and their performance is evaluated, on a fair value
basis, with frequent sales taking place.

In making an sassssmant of the objective of the businesa modal in which a financial asset is hald, the Saries Trust
considemns all of the relevant information about how the business is managed, including:

= the documented invesiment strategy and the execulion of this strategy in praclice. This includes whether
the mvaalmant etralagy focusss on eaming contractual imbersst incomse, maintaining & parbicular inleras!
rate profile, matching the duration of the fnancial sssets to the durstion of any related labilites
or expacied cash outflows or realiging cash fiows through the sals of tha assats;

- how the parformancs of the portiolio is evaluatad and raportad Io ths Sades Trusfs managamant:
- the risks thel effect the performance of the businese model (and the financial sssets held within that
buginess model) and how those risks are managed;

= huow theis Investmant manager is compantalad: 8.g. whather compansation is basad on the falr valus of tha
assets maneged or the contractual cash fiows collected; and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales
and expactations about fulure sales activity.

Transfers of financial sesets to thid parles in transactions thal do not qualify for derecognition ame nol considered
sales for this purpose, consisient with the Seres Trust's continuing recogniion of the assals.

Financial liabies camied ot amortized cost include payables for units repurchased, fee agenl fees, investiment
managemsnt feas, distribution fees, professional fees, edminisirator fees, agent mamber company feas, cusiody
fees, transfer agent fees and registration fees.

Impairment of financlal ssssts

Tha “axpacted cradit losa” EGHM“EHMI‘#MM‘W“IH“M
at FVOCI, but not to investments in equity instruments.

Based on the Seriea Trust's assesament, the ECL model does not have a materal impact on the Seres Trust's
financial assets bacause:

- The majority of the financial assets are measured at FVTPL and the impaiment requiremants do not
apply to such instruments.

= The financial assets at amorlized cost are shor-lerm (Le. noimnarlhnﬂnmﬂu}.ufﬁﬂlmﬂqwlr
andfor highly collateralired. Accordingly, the ECLs on such assets ane expected to ba

New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not effective for the year ended November 30,
2024:

A number of new standards and amendments lo slandards are effective for annual perods beginning after December
1, 2023 and sarfier application is parmittad; however, tha Series Trust has not sarly applisd these new or amendad
siandards in preparing these financial statements as they do not have a material effect on the Seres Truat's financial
siatemeants.

2.1 Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Sedes Trust considers all cash, foreign cash and shorl-tenm deposits with original maturily of thres manths
or leas fo be cash and cash equivalents.
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At November 30, 2024 and Novembar 30, 2023, the Seres Trust held the following balances as cash and cash
equivalents:

2034 2023
Cash § 23,757 5 2! Hﬂ
Time deposit 8,818,371

Csah and exsh squivalants In the Stetemsnt of Finenclal Poaltion [] 8842138 5 EEE

2.2 Financlal Assets and Llabllitiaa

(A) Classification
The Series Trust cassifies financlal assets and lablliies into the following categories:

Financial assets al fair value thiough profit or loas:
= Mandatorily al FVTPL: Investment in the Selected Fund.

Financial assats at fair valua through profit or loss consist of the following:

Movemnber 30, 2034  Movember 30, 2024

. cFairValue ____ -Cost
Investment In Salecad Fund § 208 837 237 3 238773 827
Novemnber 30, 2023 November 30, 2023
= Fair Value - Coat
Invesbment in Selecied Fund 5 194,507 856 ] 231,790,085

Financial assels al amortized cost:
= Loans and recaivables: cash and cash equivalants, recaivables for units issued and other assets.

At Novemnber 30, 2024 and November 30, 2023 the Seres Trust held no financial liabiites at fair valuwe through profit
or loss.

Finandial liabilites at amorized cost:

= Oiher kabilities: payables for purchase of units repurchased, fee agent fees, investmanl management feas,
distribution fees, professional fees, edministrator fees, agent member company fees, cusiody fees, transfer
agent fees, ragisiration fees and printing feas.

(B} Recognitton/Darecognition

The Serfes Trust recognizes financial assets and liabilities on the dale it becomes a pary to the comfractual
provisions of the instrument. Regular purchases and sales of investmanis are recognized on the irade dats - the date
on which the Series Trust commita to purchase or sell the invesiment. Financial assets are derecognized when the
rights to recava cash fows from the imsesiments have expired or the Seres Trust has transfemed substantially all
rizsks and rewards of cwnarship. Financial Eabilties ars derscognized when its confractual obligations are discharged,
canceled or expired.

(€} Measurement

Financial assals and Eabiliies at fair valua through profil or logs an initially recognized at fair value with transaction
costs recognized in the Stmtement of Comprehensive Income. Subseqguent to initial recognition, all financal assets
and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measurad al fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in
the fair value of the financial sssets and liabiliies at fair value through profit or loss’ category are presented in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in which they erise. Realized gains or losses on zale of
investmants are calculated using first-in-first-cut msthod.

Financial assels and liabiies other than those at fair value through profit or loas are carmed at amortized cost using

the effective interest rate method, less impairment losses, if any. This is considered to approximate fair value due fo
the ahar-term or immediate nature of these instruments.
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(D) Falr Value Estimation

The fair value of financial instruments taded in eclive markets (such es publicly lmded derdvatives and trading
securities) is based on quoted market prices at the dose of trading on the reporting date. Fair value is the prce that
would be received to sell an asset or paid lo transfer a Fability in an orderly transaction between marke! participants
&t the maasuremant date. Tha falr value of a liability reflacts its non-padformance risk. Investmants or othier assata for
which market quotations are not readily avallable are valved at their fair value as determined in good faith in
sccordance with procedures adopled by tha Trustes with advice from tha Manager. The resulting change in nat
unrealized gains or losses are reflected in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(E} Forward Contracts

Forward confracts are commitments either to purchase or sell a designated financial instrument, currency, commodity
or an indax at a specified future date for & specified price and may be saified in cash or another financial assel.
Forward coniracts are valued using observable inputs, such as curmency exchange rates or commodity prices, applied
o notional amounts slatad in tha applcabla contracts. Gains and losses are reporiad in net realized gain or loss on
financial azsets through profit or loas in the Statement of Comprehensive Incoma.

(F) Investment in Selected Fund

In principle, the investment Manager will invest a8 majority of its assel in the Selected Fund. The USD class of the
Selected Fund is denominated in USD and will nol ba hedged into other currancies. The Investmant Manager will not
invest in non-USD denominated assets. The Sedes Trust's investmant in the Selected Fund is subject o the terms
and condiions of the Selectsd Fund's offering documentation. The Seres Trust records ite investmants in the
Selected Fund at fair value based primarily on the Selected Fund's net essets value ("NAVT), as determined by the
administrator of the Selected Fund. The Sedes Trusl reviews tha deladls of the reporied information oblained from the
Selected Fund's administrator and considers: (1) the liquidity of the Selecled Fund, or its underlying investments, (i)
tha valua date of tha NAV providad, (i) any restrictions on redamptions, and (iv) the basis of accounting. Sinca the
Series Trust invests substartially all of its assets in the Selected Fund, net capital apprecialion or depreciation,
respectively, ﬁm&«thmwmﬂmemwwmﬂwM respectively, of the
Selected Fund. The value of the Series Trust's investment in the Selected Fund is bazed on available information and
does not necessarily represent the amount that might ultimately be realized, as such amount depends on future
circumstances and cannol reagonably ba denominated uniit the Salected Fund's undedying invesimant am actually
Bgquidated. Further, the Seres Trust's investment in the Selected Fund in indirectly subjected to restrictions, if any, of
the liquidity of the Selacted Fund's imestments.

The Series Trust's invesiment in the Selected Fund s considered to be liquid and can be redeemed on any business
day. The Sares Trust may submil to the Trustes of the Selectad Fund or its duly designated agant & Repurchase
Motice requesting lo have all or a portion its units repurchased on the relevant repurchase date. The Trusles of the
Salacted Fund should racaiva the repurchase notice by slacironic tranamission on o prior 1o 7:00 a.m. Eastam Tima
in the United States of America on the applicable repurchase date.  such notice ks not respect of the entire holding
unite of the Sedes Trusl, then the Trustee of the Selected Fund in s sole discrelion may apply a minimum
repurchase requirement of more than ane unit or JFY 10,000 (or its equivalent in any curmency).

2.3 Offsastting Financlal Instruments

Finandial assels and lisbiites are offset and the net amount reparled in the Staterment of Financial Position only
whan there is a legally enforcaable right lo offsst the recognized amounts and thers is an Intention to settle on a nat
basig, or realize the assel and setlle the liability simullanecusly. As al Nevember 30, 2024 and Novemnber 30, 2023,
all financial assets and Habilities are shown al their gross amounts as none met the criteria for financial instrurment
offsefting, and therefore have not been offset in the Stetement of Financial Position.

2.4 Recelvables for Sale of Investment in the Selected Fund

Receivables for securities sold and payables for securities purchased represent trading trensactions that have been
contracted for but not yet settled on the Statement of Finandal Position dale. Thess amounts are recognized infally
and subsequently measured at fair value, less provision for impairment for amounts of receivables for securities sold.
A provigion for impaimaent & eslablished whan thare is objective svicanca thatl the Seras Trust wil nol be able o
collect all amounts of receivables for securities sold. Significant financial difficulfes of the broker, probabiity that the
brolar will enter bankrupicy or financial reorganization, and default in payments ane considerad indicators thal tha
amourt of receivables for securities sold is impaired. As ai November 30, 2023, there were no payables for securities
purchased.

10
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2.5 Expenses
Expenses are recognized on an accrual basis in the Statemenl of Comprehensive Income.
2.6 Foreign Cumrency Tranalation

(A) Functional and Presentation Currency
The performance of the Seres Trust s measured and reported to the invesiors in U.S. Dollars. The Trustes considers
tha U.S. Dollar as the cumancy thal most faithfully represants the economic effacts of the undedying transactions,
events and conditions of the Serdea Trust. The financial statements are presented in U.S. Dollars, which is the Series
Trust's funclional and presentstion currency.

(B} Transactions and Balances

Financial assets and lisbiities denominated in forsign cumencies are transiated in U.S. Dollar amounts at the date of
valuation. Purchases and sales of financial asseta and liabiliSes, l=sue and repurchase of units and income and
axpanse iems denominated in foresign curencies ans translated into U.S. Dollar amounts on the respactive dales of
such fransactions.

Reported nel realized or unrealized foreign exchange gains or losses resulting from changes in foreign sxchangs
rales on financial sssets and Gabilities at fair value through profit or loss are included in net realized gain or loss on
financial asssts and liabilties through profit or loas, and net changa in unmealized appreciaion or depreciation on
financial assats and labifities through profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Realized and unrealized apprecietion or deprecigtion from foreign cumrency transactions and translation are disclosed
saparataly In tha Stalament of Comprahangiva Income,

2.7 Distributions

Tha Sades Trust may genarate & carain amount of incomea aach month. The cument policy of tha Sarea Trust iz o
pay to unitholder 8 monthly distribution in reepeci of each distribution date of an amount similar to the generated
incoma attributable fo tha cormaspanding distribution pariod.

The monthly distribution is expected to be computed from the following separate elements:
{) anamount equal to the distributions received from the Salected Fund (net of all applicable taxes); and

{ii} imersst accrued on the distributions recaived from (a) above, from the fima recaived by the Custodian until
paid out on the comesponding distribulion date (the ftems refemed to in pamegraphs (8) - (b) hereafter
refermed to as the “Generated Income”).

Tha amount of distribution paid in mspact of sach distribution date is datarmined by the Manages in its sola discretion
teking imo account Generated Income, realized and unrealized capital geins from the Selected Fund, and
miscellansous cosls, among other factors, per unit each manth. The Manager may, in circumstances whara it dasma
appropriate, elect that a monthly disiribution ks not payable in respect of units for a relevant menth. Circumstances
where the Manager may make such an election, include but are nol limiled to where it delermines in Ks sole
discrelion that application of the Seres Trusts invesiment objectives and policies have genarsted a negalive
perfrmance aver the previous month or have underperformed to the exdent that the Manager deems it appropriate to
make such an elaction.

Distributions declared and paid during the years ended November 30, 2024 and Novemnbar 30, 2023 were as follows;

2024 2023
Total Amourit Total Amount
Class A Uinits 5 2657707 B ZA42682

1"
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of Units
ﬂmﬁmﬁTnﬂhuumMmmud'mdﬂmW&wﬂm The Sedes Trus! classifies its puttable
instruments as lisbilties in sccordance with LAS 32 (Amendment) 'Financisl instruments: Pressntation’. Tha
amendment requires puttable financial instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability o be caseified as
equity whare cartain etrict criterla ane mat. Those criteda include:

=  Tha puttable instraments must entitle the holder to a pro-rata shara of net assets;

= The puttable instruments must be the most subordinated dass and class features must be identical;

L] Mmmlhmwﬁﬂdﬁhﬁuhhﬁmmﬂwmmmmmmwm
on the izsuer o

. mmmmmmhmmWWMmmnmmmm
profit or loas of tha issuer.

As thase condiions wera mel, tha Serdes Trusls unils hava baan dassifiad as agquily al November 30, 2024 and
Movember 30, 2023,

Units can ba put back to tha Sariea Trust al any tima for cash aqual o a proportionate share of the Saries Trust's tolal
equity.

Unite are carried et the repurchased amount that is payable et the Staterment of Financial Position date if the holder
exarcises tha right to put the units back into the Series Trust.

Units are issued and repurchased al prices based on the Seres Trust's lotal equity per unil at the time of issue or
repurchase. The Series Trust's equity per unil is calculsted by dividing the total by the tolal number of
outstanding units.

equity
The Selecled Fund finances ils operations by issuing redeemable shares which are putiable al the holder's opbion
and entiles the holder to & proportional siake in the respective Sedes Trust's nel assets. The Serias Trust holds
shares in the Selected Fund. The Seres Trusls meximum exposure to koes from (ks inlerests in the Selected Fund
squal o tha total fair valua of its investmaents in the Salectad Fund. Once tha Seras Trusl has disposad of its

in the Selecied Fund the Series Trust ceases to be exposed to any risk from the Selecled Fund.

2.9 Indemnltles:

The Truslee and the Manager, on behalf of the Seres Trust, enter into certain contracts that contain a varety of
indamnifications. The Series Trust's maximum axposure under thase arangamants i+ uninown. However, the Seres
Trust has not hed prior claims of losses pursuant to these conirects and expects the risk of loss to be remole.

2.10 Recalvables for Units lssued and Payables for Unlts Repurchased

Recaivable for units issued is carred al the ssuance amount that is recalvable at the Stalement of Financial Position
date. Payable for repurchase of units iz camed st the repurchase amount that is payvable al the Statement of
Financial Position dats.

2.11 Net income or loss from financial instruments at FVTPL

Mst income from financial instruments st FYTPL includes realized and unrealized gain or loss on financial assets and
Eabidlities at fair value through profit or loss, inferest income and dividend income. Met realized gain or loes from
firancial instruments al FVTPL is calculated using the first in, firsl out method. Net realized gain or loss on financial
ossets and labiliies ot FVTPL represents the difference between the cost of the finencial instruments and its
sattiamant prica of the sale rade.

Met change in unrealized (depreciation)appreciation on financial assets and liabilities at FVTFL represents the
difference betwesen the carrying amount of a financial instrument at the beginning of the period, or the ransaction

price if it was purchased in the currenl reporling period and its camying amount at the end of the reporling period.
Rafar to Mots 7 for further details,

Interast income presenied on the Statement of Comprahensive Income comprise interesl on financial assels and
Eabilities at amortized cost calculeted on an effective interest basis,

Dividend Income presented In the Statement of Comprehensive Income comprise dividend on financlial assets and
financial liabiites measured at FVTPL. Dividend income is recognized when the rghl to receive payment is
establishad.
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(Expressed in U.S. Doflars)
212 Taxation

The Trust has received an undertaking from the Cayman Islends Government exempting it from all local incoma,
profits and capital gaing texes until Decamber 2, 20683, No such taxes ara levied in the Cayman lslands at the present
time.

The Seres Trust could incur withholding texces imposed by certain countries on investment income and capial gains.
Such incoms or gain would be recondad gross of withholding taxes n the Statement of Incomas,
Withholding taxes would be shown as a ssparete item in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Mo withhalding
lex expensa was paid during the years ended November 30, 2024 and November 30, 2023,

The Selected Fund invests in securities domiciled in countries olher than Cayman Iskands. Many of these foreign
countries have tax laws which indicate that capital gains taxes may be applicable fo non-nasidents inciuding the
Selected Fund. These capital gains texes are required to be determined on a sel-assessment basis and, therefore,
such laxas may not be daduciad by the Salactad Fund's broker on a ‘withholding' basis.

In accordance with 1AS 12 — Income Taxes, the Series Trust is required to recognize a tax kability when i is probable
that tha tax laws of foreign countries require a tax [fability to ba assesaed on the Seres Trusts capital gains sourced
from such foreign couniry, sssuming the melevanl temdng authorities have full knowledge of all the facts and
circumstances. The tax liabiity is then measured at the amount expectsd to be paid to the relevant taxation
authorities using the tax lews and rafes that have been enacled or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
pariod.

There is sometimes unceriainty about the way enacted tax law is applied lo offshore investment Series Trusts. This
crextes uncertainty aboul whether or not a tax llabikty will ulimately be paid by the Seres Trust. Themefore, when
maasuring any uncertain tax Eabilites managamant considers all of tha relavant facis and circumsiances available at
the fime which could influance the ikelinood of payment, induding any formal or informal practices of the relevant tax
suthorities.

As al November 30, 2024 ard November 30, 2023, the Manager has determined that the Seres Trust did not have
2 liability to record for any unrecognized tax banefits in tha accompanying financial statemaents. Whils this represants
the Manager's best estimate there remains & risk that the foreign tax authorities will attempt to collect taxes on capital
gains eamed by tha Series Trusl. This could happen withoul giving prior waming, possibly on 8 retrospactiva basia,
and could result in a loss to the Series Trust.

213 Investmant In unconsolldated structured entities
Thi Seres Trust has concluded that all investments in the unlisted Selected Fund, in which il holds an inlerest but
does not consolidate, mesats tha dafinition of structured emtities dua to tha following:

= the voling rights in these entities are not the dominant rights In deciding who conirola them as they relale i
sdministrative tasks only;

= the entilies' activities are restriciad by their respaciive investment sirstegy or offering docurments; and

=  these entfies have a namow and well-defined objective to provide investment opportunitias to investors.
The nature of and risks associaled with the Sares Trusts interest in the other funds ane disclosed in Note 5.
3. REPURCHASES OF UNITS
Thia Nat Assal Value of sach unit of the Sefes Trust is calculalad by dividing the Net Asssl Valus of the Series Trusl
by the total number of unita of the Serdes Trust then outstanding. The Administrator computes the Net Asset Value of
the Series Trusl al the close of business on each dealing day.
The price of units, for all purposes, |s calculaled and paid in U.S. Dollars.
The minimum initial subscription must be no less than 1 unit All unitholders mus! complete a subscription application.
The initial purchase price of units is $100 per unil. All payments for the units must be made in U.S. Dollars.
The Trustee may reject any subscription for any reason and without providing reasons.
Afer the inftisl lssue of units, an eligible inveslor may subscribe for units on any subseguent subscription date al the

redevart subscription price. All payments for the units shall be made in U.S. Dollars. The Trustee may reject any
subscription for any reascn and without providing reascns.
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(Expressed in U.S. Doflars)

Tha Trustes or is duly designated agent must recedve the subscription price for the units on or prior to 5:00 p.m.
(Tokyo time) by no later than the second business day afier the relevant subscription date. Subscription applications

are |
Tha total net asasls, unils outstanding and net assel value par unil as of November 30, 2024 wers Bs follows.!
Ml Assat Valus par

Classss of units Todal nel assats Units outstanding ik
Class A Units ] 215,639,131 2214382 § 973812

Tha total net asssts, units outstanding and net asset valua par unit as of November 30, 2023 were as follows:

Ml Assat Valus par
Clussna of units Total nel eesats Units umnilt
Class A Unats 5 200,908,011 2108447 % 91,3863

As of Novambar 30, 2024 and Novembar 30, 2023 all issusd units wara haid by one unitholdar, who holds 100% of
interest in the net assels of the Series Trusl.

A unitholder may transfer its holdings in units only with the prior written consent of the Trustes which consant shal
nol be unreasonably withheld or delayed. No transfer of units will be effective and binding on the Trusiee or
unitholdar untll antered into the Sares Trusls regisier of unitholdars.

Each unithoider may submit to the Trustes or its duly designated agent a repurchase notice requesting to have all or
a portion of ita units repurchased at the Repurchasae Price on the relevant repurchase dabe. Repurchase orders may
be submitted in units. If such notica is not in respect of tha entire holding units of such unitholder recorded in the
register of unitholders then the Trustee in its sole discretion may apply 8 minimum repurchase requirement of 1 unit,
Repurchase notices ane imevocable.

At the time of each repurchase of units prior to the Final Repurchaese Day, no repurchase fee is applied to each unit
being repurchased.

Contingent Deferred Sales Charge (“CDSC")
The repurchase proceeds payable o & unitholder may be subject to the deduction of the CDSC (if applicable).

For units that ane repurchasad priar lo the fifth anniversary of the date of their issue (whether volurtarily or by way of
a compulsory repurchase), a8 CDEC, calculaied as a perceniage of the purchase price paid at the time of subscription
for such units will be charged by the Disiributor in accordance with the following scale and paid to Credit Suisse
Imernational.

Holding Period CDEC
1 yaar or lass 2.00%
More than 1 o2 of less B0
More than 2 o3 or less 20%
More than 3 years (o 4 years of less 0.80%
[More than & years to 5 years or less 0.40%
|More than 5 years Nona

For the purpose of calculating the holding period applicable o the CDSC, unils will slart ageing from the first day of
the manth which followa the month in which such units ware issusd until the relevant Repurchase Day.

The CDSC (if applicabla) will be deducted from the Repurchase Prica and is payabls by the relevant repurchasing
unitholder to the Fee Agent and not to the Series Truat

Upon a Compulsory Repurchase Event occurming or the Sedes Trust terminating prior to the Final Repurchase Day,
the CDSC shall similardy apply; and the CDSC will be calculated os if the relevant units ware repurchased on the day

on which the Compulsory Repurchase Event or termination of the Series Trust takes effec, uniass the Manager in its
discretion determines ctherwise,
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In accordance with the termas of the Fes Agent Appointmant Agreamant, the Fee Agenl shall continus to be antitled to
receive the CDSC if its appointment as Fee Agent is terminated,

Amounts payabile fo the unitholder in connection with the repurchase of units of any class are paid in cash bul may be
made in kind (or parially in kind) by the distribution of sacurities hald by the Trustes io the axiant thal the Trustea, in
consultation with the Manager, determines it to be in the bes! inlerests of the unitholder. i such a determination is
mada by the Trustss, distributions 1o all repurchasing unitholderns on tha sama day ane made on the same basis.

Pmmlnwdmbanﬂohtuﬁn&mmﬂulm be freely purchased with such epplicable cumency
8 unitholdar may requast, providad thal any mmmwhmmmmmmm
mm.mmmmmmmmmmwmmm

During the year ended November 30, 2024, the proceeds from units lssued and repurchased wers as follows:

Procesds from units  Procsads from unite
Classse of units IssLed repurchased
Class A Units 5 21,649,881 5 (20,008,778)

During thie year ended November 30, 2023, the proceeds from units ssued and repurchased wers &3 follows:

Proceeds from units Procesds from units
Clssssa of units Isnued repurchesed
Class A Unita 3 52369147 9 (17,510,263)

During tha years andad Movember 30, 2024 and Novembar 30, 2023, tha numbar of units lssusd, repurchased and
cutstanding were as follows:

At
Classes of units Hmhr!ﬁm‘! lhlhhu-d Units repurchased  Novembar 30, 2024
Class A Units 2,158,447 [210,499) 2,214,282

At
Clasass of units Hmhﬂuiﬂz Udhinuld Units repurchasad  November 30, 3033
Class A Units 1.822.411 (190,310 2,168,447

The issue and repurchase of units and payments in respect of such transactons will be suspended in any
circumsiances where the calculation of the Net Asset Value per unit is suspended. The Trustee will inform unitholder
of such a auspansion as acon as practicable after it |8 imposed or IMed. Subscription applications and repurchase
notices cannol be withdrawn during such suspension and will be processed for the next subscriplion date or
repurchase dais, as the case may ba.

4. CRIMICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

Management makes estimates and assumptions conceming the future that affect the reported amounts of assets and
Eabdlitiss. Eslimates are continually evalusled and basad on histodical sxperance and other faclors, ncuding
axpactations of future evers that are belisved to ba reasonable under the crcumstances. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equel the relaled actusl results. The Seres Trust may, from tme to time, hold
financial instruments that are nol quobed in active markets, such as over-the-counter derivatives. Fair values of such
instruments are determined by using valuation techniques. YWhere valuation fechniques (for example, models) are
usad o datermine fair values, they are validatad and parodically reviewad by the Manager.

5. FINANCIAL RISKS MANAGEMENT
5.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust
Tha Seres Trust'a invesimant portfolio mainly comprises of the Salectad Fund. The Saries Truat's activities expoas it

Io & variety of finencial risks: markel risk (ncluding cumency risk, fair value interest rate risk and price rsk), credil risk
and lquidity risk. The managamaent of these risks is carmed out by the Manager under policies approved by the
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Tha Sedes Trust may be materally affectsd by the actons of anothaer eniity imvesting in the Selected Fund, For
example, if anather unithalder of the Selected Fund repurchases some or all of its interests in the Selected Fund, the
Salacted Fund and, in tum, the Series Tnesi, may exparence higher pro rata operating expensas, thersby producing
lower retuns. Simiarly, the Selected Fund may become less diverse due o repurchases from its other wnitholders,
reaulling in increased portfolia risk. The Selecisd Fund may restricd ks imestment acliviies or ba precluded from
investing in certain instruments due o regulstory restrictions on certain of its direct or indirect investors or otherwise,
which may hava an adversa affect on the performance of the Selectad Fund, and, in turn, the Sarias Trust,

(&) Market Risk

(i) Currency Risk

Investmant in the Selected Fund and forward confracts in which tha Seres Trust invests may be denominated or
quoted in cummencies other than the funclional cumency of the Seres Trust. [ o
currancy exchange rates can affect the value of the Series Trust's portfolio.

g
F
_a
i
i

Generally, whan the Sedes Trusts funclional cumency rises in value againsi another cumency, & securify

against another cumancy, ammﬂumr-m in that cumancy gains value.

Thils risk, genarally known as "curmancy risk,” means that a strong functional cumency of the Series Trust may reduce
retums fo investors while a weak functional cummency of the Series Trust may increase those returns. Cumency rales
may fluctusts significantly ower shorl periods of time for a number of reasons, including changes in inlerast rales,
intervention (or the failure to intervene) by the govemments, central banks or supranational entites such as the
International Monatary Fund, or by tha imposition of currency controls or othar palitical developmants. As a rasult, the
Series Trust's investmants in forsign-cumency denominated securities may reduce its retums. Certain positions taken
by the Series Trusl are designed Io profit from forecasting cumency price movements, Predicling future prices is
inharently uncertsin and the losses incumed, if the market moves againsl a position, will not be hedged. The
speculative asped of attempling lo predicl absolute price movemenis is generally perceived lo exceed that involved
in atternpting to pradict relative prics fuctuations.

Through the use of vardous types of forsign currency transaclions, the Series Trust may be exposed fo the
performance of a particuler cumency or cumencies to contribute to the performance of the Series Trust There can be
no assurance that the Menager will employ a successful currency program and the Seres Trust could incur loeses
stiributable to s currancy activities whan the value of the functional curmency weakens agains! the olher curmencies of
the Seres Trusl. in addition, the Serdes Trust will incur ransaction cosls in connecion with the currency stralegy
designated by the Manager.

The table below summarizes the Series Trust's axposure lo curmancy risks at November 30, 2024

Financial
At Assets at Falr  Other Assets % of Net

November 30, Cash and Cash Value through and Liakilities Anzet

2024 Equivalents Profit or Loss [MNat) Mat Value
Japanese Yan JFY § -$ -5 (31,102) § (31,102} 0.0%
- - {31,102} (31,102) 0.0%

United States

Dollar UsD 8,842 128 208,537,237 (508,130} 216,670,235 100.0%

$ 68421288 208537237 § (540,232} § 215,638,133 100.0%
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Tha table below surmmanzes the Saries Trust's exposure 1o curmancy risks at November 30, 2023;

Financlal
At Asects gt Fair  Other Assets % of Net.

Novambar 30, Caah and Caah  Value through  and Liabilites At

2033 Equivalents _ Profit or Loss (Net) Mat Value
Japanase Yan JPY § -% ] (5,468) § (5,4568) 0.0%
= = (5,458) [5.458) 0.0%

United States

Dollar uso 5,877 454 184 507 B56 428,159 200,813, 468 100.0%
$ 50774545 154,507,856 5 701 § 200 [ K] 100.0%

The following table summarizes ihe sensitivity of the Seres Trusts assets and liabilities o changes in foreign
exchange movements st November 30, 2024 and November 30, 2023, The analysis iz based on the assumptions
that the relevant foreign sccchange rats increasadi{decreased) against the U.S. Duluhrhpﬂmllguld:dmndh
the table, with all cther variables held constant. This represents management's best estimate of 8 reasonably
possible shift in the foreign exchange rates, having regard to historical volalility of those rabes.

Reasonably possible
shift In currency rate Impact to Serles Trust

Currency 2024 Nat Assets
JBY - 201% +- & 625
Reasonably possibla
shift in curmency rate Impact to Series Trust
Curraney 2023 Nat Asgats
JEY +- B.22% +- § 338

(ii} interest Rate Risk

Interest rate rizk is the sk that prices of fored income securities genarally increase whan inlenss! rates dacline and
decrease when inferest rates increase. Prices of longer lemm securities generally change more in response to inlerest
rale changes than prices of shorer lerm securifies. The Senes Trust may lose money if shor-lerm or long-term
interest rates rise sharply or otherwise change in a manner nol anticipated by Series Trust management. VWhen
inlerast rates fiuctuate, the duration of the sacurity may ba used as an indication of the degres of change in the debi
prica of the debt security. Tha bigger the ascurity’s duration valus, the langer the change in tha prica of the dabt
security for a given movement in inlerest rales may be. Therefore, the Net Asset Value may fuctuate.

Interest bearing assels held by the Series Trust are comprised of cesh and cash equivalents whose maturity is less
than threa monthe and tha insesimant in the Selecled Fund.

Thia yisdd on ths Salected Fund's (and indiractly, the Sarias Trust's) investments may be sansitive to changss in
prevailing interest rates, which may resull in a mismaich between the Salected Fund's asset yield and bormowing
rales and consequently reduce or eliminata income derved from ifs investments.

If interest rates increase, prices of fixed income securilies generally decline, reducing the value of the Selected
Fund's (ard indinectly, the Seres Trust's) investments. A major changs in inlerest rales or 4 significant dacling in the
markel value of the Selected Fund's (and indireclly, the Series Trust's) investments, or other market evenl, could
caugs the valua of the investmants of the Masber Fund's irvestors (and indirecity the unithalders” investments in the
Series Trust), or its yield, 1o decline.

The Sedes Trust may Invest in municipal bond securiies theough ta indirect exposure to the investments of the

Selected Fund. Any changes lo prevailing interes! rates or changes in expectations of fulure rates may result in an
incraase or decreass in tha value of the sacuriies hald.

At November 30, 2024 and November 30, 2023, should interast rates have lowerad or risen by 50 basis points with
all other variables remaining constant, the increase or decrease in total comprehenaive Income of the Seres Trust

(baing increass in nat assats attributable to the holder of units from operations for the period) would amount 1o
aspproximately $33 082 and $28,778, respectively, assuming that the cash poaition will be held for one year.
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(1) Market Price Risk

The market price of investiments owned by the Series Trust and securities held by the Selecled Fund may go up of
down, somelimas rapidly or unpredictably. Securities may decline in value due to factors affecting securities markets
genenally or particular industries represented in the securities markets. The value of a security may deding due o
genaral marksl condiions which are nol spacifically relatad to 8 particulsr company, such as real or percaived
adverse economic conditions, supply and demand for particular securities or instruments, changes in the general
outiook for corporala aamings, changes in interest or cumancy rates or adverss investor sentimanl. They may also
decline due to factors which affect a particular industry or industries, such as labor shortages or incressed production
costs and competitive conditions within an industry, During a general downtum in the securities markets, mulliple
sssal classss may dadine in value simultanecusly. Equity securities ganerally have greater price volstility than ficed
income securities.

An increase in market pricea of the investment in the Selected Fund of 1% at November 30, 2024 and November 30,
2023, would have increasad the total equity by $2,085,372 and $1,845,079, respectively. A decrease of 1% would, all
else being equal, have an agual bul opposile effect.

As @t Novermnbar 30, 2024, the Invesiments of the Selectad Fund are mainly in Corporate Bonds and Municipal
Bonds, which represent approodmalely 12% (2023: 11%) and 87% (2023: 87%) of the nel assets of the Selected
Fund, respactivaly.

For the Selacted Fund, the invesiments ane primarily concentrated in the United States of America al November 30,
2024 and November 30, 2023,

(B) Credit Riak

Changes in an issusr's cradit rating or the markel's parcaption of an issuars creditwarthiness may affect tha value of
the Saeries Trust's investment in that issuer. The degres of credit fak depends on both the financial condition of the
issuwer and the terms of the obligation.

Due to its investment in the Selected Fund, the Series Trust is exposed lo the credit risk associated with debt
ingtrumants that may be held by the Selected Fund. The increased cradit risk may prevent tha Selected Fund's
invesiment objective and consequently the Serea Trust's investment objective from being achieved. All transactions
in listed sacurities held by the Selected Fund are settiedipaid for upon delivery using approved brokers. The risk of
default is considered minimal, as delivery of securities sold is only made once the broker has received paymenl.
Payment is made on a purchase once the securities have been received by the broker. The trade will fail if either
party fails to masl their obigation.

The Investment Manager monitors the Series Trust's credit position on an on-geing basis.

Municipal Bond sacuriies in which the Selected Fund may invest could be subject to the credit risk of the undedying
gssets and in the event of default of such essels and the exhavstion of any underlying credit support, the Selected
Fund may not recover its full imnvestment. Furlhermore, il is possible that some issuers of fixed income sacurities in
which the Salacted Fund invests will ba unable to maks the required psyments on their debt sacuritias held by the
Selected Fund. Debl securities could also go up or down in value based on the perceived creditworthiness of issuers.

The maximum exposure to credit riek of all financial assets of the Series Trusl es of November 30, 2024 and
November 30, 2023 is the camylng amounts as shown on the Sialement of Financial Posiion. No collalesal or other
credit enhancements are held by the Series Trust. None of these assets are impaired or past due.

The clearing and depository operations for the Selected Fund's security transactiona are mainly concentrated with the

Custodian. At November 30, 2024 and Movemnber 30, 2023, substantislly all cash end cash eguivalentz and
investmants are placed in custody with the Custodian, with & Fitch credit rating of A+.
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mummuu-mn-mnmnmmmwnnﬂmmummmu
a percentage of net assets of the Selected Fund.

Rating® % of Net Azsats
B3%

Asa
Aa1 12.5%
An2 Z5.6%
ARl 17.6%
Al 18.6%
A2 BI%
AZ S.4%
Baai 0.6%
Baa2 1.8%
Baa3 __ omw
BB

“Security ratings, if any, are oblained from Moady's Inveslor Servics.

The following table summarizes e cradit quality of the Selecied Fund's debt portfolio at Movember 30, 2023 as
a parcantage of nat assets of tha Selected Fund.

Fating™ % of Net Assets
Ama B.E%
Asl 10.3%
An2 2T.E%
And 18.1%
Al 16.6%
A2 BA%
A3 4.6%
Baal 0%
BaaZ 2.7%
A
“Sacurty ratings, If any, are obtained from Moody's imvestor Service.
(C) Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk exists when particular investments are dificult to purchase or sell. The Seres Trust's investments in
Hiquid securites may reduce the relumns of the Sedes Truet because Il may be unable to sell the liquld securites ol
an advantagecus tme or price. To the extenl that the Senes Trusl's principal invesiment strategies Imwobe
derivatives or securiies with substantial market andlor credit risk, the Serdes Trust will lend to have the greatest
axxpoaure o liquidity risk.

Tha tablea below analyre tha Sedas Trust's financial Eabilites into relevan] maturity grouping based on the remaining
period at the Stetement of Financial Position date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table ane the
contraciual

undiscounted cash flows.
At November 30, 2024 Leas than 1 month 1 -3 months Total
Peyables for.
Fea agent fees $ 248,745 § - & 248,745
Unita repurchased 165,803 - 155,803
Professional foes 78,882 - T8 BA2
Distribution fees 43 BET - 43 66T
T 43,530 = 43,530
Administrelor fees I2.375 - 32375
Printing faes 3o - 3002
Agant mamber company fooa BA18 - B 418
Transfar i) 5 288 - 5 288
Contractual cash out flows [excluding net
sssets attributable to the holder of units)  § 845,911 $ - _ 3 845,911
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At November 30, 2023 Loss than 1 month 1 -3 months Total
Payabiea for:
Fee agent fees 3 326,677 5 - 5 328877
Unita repurchased 184,774 - 184,774
Imvestmant mansgement feos G4 BES - G4 BEE
fees 63,838 - 63,638
Professional fess 2,515 = 62,515
Distribution fees 40,408 - 40,408
Administrator fees 35278 - 35218
Agant member company feoe 8,082 - B0
Printing foes - 5458
TI‘HW' agent fees o7 - T
B30 — &30
Cortractual cash out flows (excluding
sssots attrlbutable to the holder of EI 3 TR 53 ] = $ 796,353

The Manager monitons the Series Trust's Bguidity position on an on-going basis.

Liquidity risk is managed by imvesling no more than 15% of the Met Asset Value In Biquid assels.

There were no dervative financial instruments held by the Seres Trust as st November 30, 2024 and November 30,
2023,

Due to it Investmant In the Selected Fund, the Seriea Trusl is exposad o the liquidity risk associaled with unitholder
rapurchases in accordanca with the terms in the Sselected Fund's Prospectus. The Seriea Trus! is managed to include
Equid investments sufficiert to mest normal liquidity nesds athough subslantial repurchases of Units in the Seres
Trust could requine the Selecled Fund to liquidate its investments more rapidly than otherwise desirable in order to
maise cash for the repurchases. These faclos could adversely affect the value of the units repurchased and the
valuation of the unita that remain outslanding and the liquidity of the Sedes Trust's remaining assels If more liquid
assels have been sold to meel the repurcheses.

There were no repurchase fees applied In respect to the Selecied Fund for the years ended November 30, 2024 and
November 30, 2023

(D) Rink Management
Tha Sernas Trust's Invastment Manager s team is supporied by cartain risk management syslems and professionals,
which previde regular reporting on all portfolio positions and quantitative fsk measures.

The capital of the Seres Trusl is represerted by the nel assets atfribiteble to the holder of units.
The amount of net assets atidbutable to the holder of units can changa significantly on & daily basis as the Seres
Truet is subject to daily subscriptions and repurchasas gt the discretion of the unitholder, The Serdes Trust's objective
when managing capital Is fo safeguard the Series Trusls abllity to continue ss a going concem in order to provide
ratums for the unithclder and banefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a sirong capital base to suppor the

of lhe imvestment acliviles of the Seres Trusl. In order to malmain or adjusl the capial structure, the
Senes Trust's policy is to parform tha following:

= hhnhﬂnhﬂd#&nﬁmbﬁwnmdmﬂmmﬂwhhhﬁnﬂudad}wthmﬂd
distributions the Series Trust pays lo the holder of units

= Repurchase and [ssua New units in accordance with tha constituional documants of tha Saries Trust.
The Manager monitors capital on the basis of tha value of net assets atiributabla to the holder of units.
5.2 Additional Soriea Trust's Risks

(A) Custody Risk

Neither the Trustee nor the Manager controls the custodianship of the Series Trust's entire holding of indirect
inveaiments. The Cusiodian or other bankes or brokerage firms selected lo act as custodians may become insolvent,
causing tha Seras Truat to losa all or & poron of tha funds or sacurities held by those cuatodians,
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(B) Risk of iIndamnification

The Trustee, the Manager, the Administrator, the Custodian, and other parties, and each of their respeclive agents,
principals, officers, employess, and affiliates are entitled to be indemnified out of the assels of the Serdes Trust under
certain circumstances which may resull in 8 decrease in Net Asset Value per unit.

(C) Sethernent Risk

Setlemernt and clearance procedures in cenaln foreign markets differ significantly from those in the United States,
the Ewropaan Union and Japan, Foreign settement and cearance procadures and trads reguiations may also involve
certain raks (such as delays in payment for or delivery of securities) not typically associated with the setlement of
United States investments, Al limes, setflements in cerigin foreign countries have not kept pace with e number of
sacurities fransactions. Thesa problems may maks & difficult for the Selected Fund and ultimately, the Manager to
camy out transactions for the account of the Seres Trust If the Manapger cannot setlie or ks delayed in setiing
a purchasa of securities, R may miss attractive invesiment opportunities and some of the Saries Trust's assets may
be uninvesied with no retum eamed thereon for some period.

If the Selacted Fund and ulimately, the Manager cannot settie or is delayed in satiling a sale of securiies, the Seriss
Trust may lose money if the value of the underlying security then dedines or, if  has contracted to sell the security to
another party, the Series Trust could be liable for any losses incurmad,

(D) Dartvatives

The Manager may use denivative instrumenls 1o hedge the Seres Trusl's Invesiments or o seek o enhance the
Senes Trust's refurns. Derdvatives allow the rsk scposure of tha Series Trust to iIncrease or decreass mone quickly
and efficiently than other types of instruments. Derivatives ane volatile and involve significant rieks, including:

= Cradil Risk — the risk that the counterparty (the party on the othar side of the transaction) on a darvativa
tranzaction wil be unable to honor ita financial obligation to the Series Trust.

= Leverage Risk — the risk associaled with certain types of invesiments or trading stralegles thal relatively
small markel movemants may result in large changes in the valua of an investmenl, Cartain invesiments or
trading strategies that involve leverage can result in losses that grasty axcead the amount originally
invested.

= Liquidity Risk — the risk that cerlain securities may be difficull or impossible to sell at the time thel the seller
would ke or 81 the price that the saller balieves the security is curmanity worth,

The Manager may use derfvatives for hedging purposes for the Seres Trust, including anticipatory hedges. Hedging
is a stratagy in which the Manager usas a derivative to offsst the risks associated with other Sarias Trust's holdings.
While hedging can reduce lcases, it can also reduce or eliminale gaina or cause losses if the market moves in
a manner different from thet anticipated by the Manager or if the cost of the derivative outweighs the benefit of the
hadga. Hadging also involves the risk that changes in the valus of the dervative will not match thosa of the holdinga
being hedged as expecied by the Manager, in which case any losses on the holdings being hedged may not be
raduced and may be increased. There is no assurance that the Seres Trust's hedging strategy will reduce risk or
that hedging transactiona are either available or cost effeciive.

Thea Manager is not raquined o uas hedging for the Serdes Trust and may choosa not to do so. Bacause the Manager
may use derivatives lo seek to enhance the Series Trusfs retums, its investments will expose the Series Trust to the
risks cutlined above to 8 greatar esctent than if the Manager used dedvatives solaly for hadging purposes. Usa of
derivatives to sesk to anhance retums is considerad speculative.

Az of Novemnber 30, 2024 and November 30, 2023, there were no Seres Trust derivative assels and dervative
liabilities subjact i natting amangameants and similar amangemants.

The financial inatifutions and courterparties, including banks and brokerage firms, such as the Custodian, with which
the Manager or its dalegate trades or invests for the accound of the Sares Trust, may ancounter financial dificulties
ond default on their respective obligations owed in respect of the Sedes Trust. Any such default could result in
material losses to the Series Trust. In addition, the Manager may pledge collateral for the account of the Series Trust
i the counterparties in ordaer to secure certain transactions. No collateral was pladged by the Manager during the
years ended November 30, 2024 and November 30, 2023,

3
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Tha Seres Trust has not offsel any financial assels or financial liabilbes in the Statemant of Financial PosiSon.

(F} Generated Income and Diatributions

There is no guarantee thal there will be any Generaled Income. Distributions may be paid in whole or in parl out of
invaatmaent principal atiributable to the wnils or, sllematively, the Geanarsted Incoma may be zera. A distribution can in
effect result in a return of an investor's initial capital or capital gains thereby eroding that caphal to the extent the
distribution axcasds available income. In consaquance of this possibility, investors seeking capital presarvation may
nol achieve this given probable deterioration in the value of the Seres Trust's invesiments caused by declining asset
values and a retum of capital to imvestors by way of distribution. If the Series Truet is not profitable, the Repurchase
Prica & unitholder receives back in respact of & repurchasa of units may be less than the unitholdsr's infial
invesiment.

The Generated Income partially relies on the receipt of distributions paid by the Selected Fund, Should the Selected
Fund fail 1o pay any distibuions or pay less than anticipated, or dua o & fise in the non-treaty tax rats applicable 1o
the Series Trust, then the Series Trust may gain accordingly lesa than investors may have previously expecied.
Furthermiora, if the inferesi rate al which the distributions recebred accrue falls during the monthly period, this may
siso lead to the Generatad Incoma being iower than expacted.

(G} No Intarast in the Selectad Fund

The return on the units depends, amongst other things, on the performance of the Selected Fund. An investment in
units does not give a unitholder a dinect interast in the Selactad Fund,

(H) Early Termination of the Sories Trust
Although the Final Repurchase Day of the Series Trust is scheduled for December 1, 2163, the Final Repurchase
Day will ba browght forward should a Compulsory Repurchass Event aocur.

5.3 Fair Value Estimation and Hierarchy Designation
The Seres Trust applies IFRS Accounting Standand 13 'Fair valie measumement’ and utilizes the last traded market
price for its fair valuation inputs for both financial assels and abilities.

An active mariet s a market in which transactions for the asset or Bability take place with sufficent frequency and
volurne fo provide pricing information on an ongaing basis.

The fair value of financial assets and labilities that are nol traded in an active marke! is determined by using valsation
tachniquas. Tha Series Trust usas a varaty of mathods and makes assumplions that are basad on markel condions
existing &t each period end dale. Valuation lechniques used for non-standardized financial instruments such es
options, curmency swaps and other over-the-counter dervalives, inclede the use of comparable recent amm’s length
transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash fiow analysis, option
pricing modeals and other valuation techniquas commonly used by market participants making the maximum uss of
markel inputs and relying as litthe as possible on entity-specific inputs.

For instrumants for which thare is no active market, tha Sares Trust may usa intemally developed models, which are
usuelly based on valuation methods and lechniques generally recognized as standard within the industry. Some of
the inputs to thase models may not be market obaervabla and are thersfors estimated based on assumptions. The
output of & medel is always an eslimale or approximation of a value that cannot be determined with certainty, and
valuation lechniques employed may nol fully reflect all factors relevant to the positions the Seres Trust holds.
Valuations ane therefore adjusted, where appropriate, to allow for addiional factors Including moded risk, liquidity risk
and countarparty risk.

The Series Trust classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy thal reflects the significance of the
inputs usad in making the measurements.

Thia fair valus hbsrarchy has the following levala:

= Leval 1 inputs are quotad prices {unadjusiad) in active markesls for identical assets or liabiliies thal the antity
can access at the messurement date;

= Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoled prices included within Level 1 that are cbservable for the assel
or liability, efther directly or indirectly: and

=  Level 3 inputs are uncbsenvable inputs for the asset or liability.
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Tha level in the fair valus hisrarchy within which the fair valus measurement is categorized in s entirety
is determined on the basis of the lowes! level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. For
thia purposs, the significanca of an input iz assassad against the fair value measuremant in its antiraty. If a fair value
measwement uses cbservable inputs thal require significant adjustment based on unobservable inpuls, that
meassuwrement B & Level 3 meassureman!. Assessing the significance of 8 paricular inpul lo the fair valus
measurement in its entirety requires judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or Bability.

The determination of what constihiles ‘observable’ requires significant judgment by the Administrator, under
advisemeni of the Manager. The Adminisirator, under advisemend of the Manager, considers abserveble data to be
that markat dats that i readily available, regularly disiributed or updsted, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and
prowided by independent scurces that are aclively involved In the relevant markel.

The following is a summary of the fair valuations sccording to the inputs used as of November 30, 2024 in valuing the
Sares Trusls financial assais:

(Unadjusted] Quoted Significant Significant
Prices In Active Other Unobsorvable
Flnancial Asssts st Falr Warkuts for [dentical Obssrvabila Inputs Fair Value at
Value Through Profit or Loss Irvastrnants (Laval 1) Ingasts (Lavel 2} {Larsad 3} Movaam bar 30, 2024
Investment in the Sslscted Fund
Core Fund WSO Class _ § - 3 20053737 8§ -5 209,537 237
Financial assots at falr value
hrough profit or loss $ - § ooeswaw § = 200,837,237

Tha following is a summary of the fair valuations sccording to the inputs used as of Novamber 30, 2023 in valuing the
Series Trusl's financial assets and liabilities:

Cuoted Significant Significant

Pricas In Acthve Othar Unobssrvabls
Financial Assats at Fair Warksts for [dentical Obssrvakds Inpasts Fair Vialue at
Valus Through Profit or Loss Irreaatmants (Lewsd 1) Inputs (Lavel 2} (Larvad 3) Hovember 30, 2023
Investment in the Selected Fund
Municipal Core Fund USD Class ~ § - % 184507858 5 -3 184,507,858
Financial aasets at fair valus
through profit o less 5 i ] 184,507858 § L 184,607, 856

During the years ended Novembar 30, 2024 and MNovember 30, 2023, there were no fransfers between Levels 1, 2
and 3.

Financial instrumenls that rade in markets thal are not considered to be active bul are valued based on quoled
markel pricas, dealer quotations or atemative pricing scurces supported by obsarvabis inputs am classified within
Level 2. Thess include over-the-counter dervalives and debl securities. As Level 2 investments include positions thet
are not traded in active markets andior are subject to transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted lo reflect
Hiquidity andfor non-iransferability, which are generally based on available market information.

For purpoaes of calculating the MAY of the Selected Fund, fixed income securiies for which market quotes are
raadily availabla are normally valusd on the basiz of guolss oblained from ssiablishad market makers or pricing
servicas and are classified as Level 2 investments in the financial statements of the Selactad Fund. Forward
contracts are valued veing observable inputs which can generally be corroborated by market data and ere therefore
classified ss Level 2 investmants in the financial sisternents of the Selected Fund. As of November 30, 2024 snd
Movember 30, 2022 all financial assets and llabiliies were classified as Level 2 investments.

Financial assets and ilabliltles not carrled at falr value through profit or loss

M At November 30, 2024 and Movember 30, 2023, cash and cash equivalents and all other assets and
Babiiities (including receivables for units issued, other assets and payables for units repurchased, fee agent
feas, invesimant managemant feas, distibution fees, professional feas, adminisirator feas, agent member
company fees, cuslody fees, transfer agent fees, regisiration fees and printing foes) are deemed shorl-term
financial assets and liabilttes whose carrying amounts approximate fair value bacausa of thair shor-lem
nature. Refer to Note 2 for a description of the valuation techniques.
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5.4 Investments (n unconsollidated structured entities

As of November 30, 2024 and November 30, 2023, the Selected Fund's nel essel value was JPY 31,484,524 880
(approximataly USS 198,386,018) and JPY 28,757 477,170 (approximately US$ 184,543 638), respactvely. As of
November 30, 2024, the Selected Fund held total imvestments of JPY 31,215,988,744 comprising of fixed income
sbcurities (comporale bonds, municipal bonda & nolas, assal backed sacuriies and time deposiis). As of November
30, 2023, the Selected Fund held total investments of JPY 28,438,084,138 comprising of fixed income securities
({corporate bonds, municipal bonds & notas, asset backed securities and time deposits) of JPY 28 464 284 BES and
forward contracts of JPY (28,180,732). The valuation of investments in unconsolidabed structured entities represents
the amount the Series Trust would expect fo receive if il were to liquidated or redeem s invesiments subject lo the
undarlying fund's liquidity or redamption restrictions and costs.

Tha Selacted Fund |s financed through aquity capital provided by imsestors, induda the Seras Trusl. During the vears
ended November 30, 2024 and November 30, 2023, the Sedes Trust did not provide any other financial support to
the Salectad Fund and has no inlention of praviding financial or other support to this antity.

The rights atiached io the Series Trest's holding in the Selecled Fund s similar fo thosa of other investors.
Subscriptions imto tha Selected Fund are govermned by tha rights stipulated in thair offering documants. The Saries
Trust has the abiity lo liquidate or redeem iis investmenls periodically in sccordance with the provisions of the

respactive fund agresmaenis. Refar io Nota 2 for information regarding the investment objectives and liguidity
provisions of the Selected Fund.

6. DERIVATIVE FINANCLAL INSTRUMENTS

Forward Contracts

Tha Invastmant Manager for the Selactad Fund anters into forward contracis for the Salactad Fund by buying forward
contracts, under normal circumstances in an amount equal, to the extent pessible, lo approximately 100% of the USD
exposure of the Net Asset Value (excluding unrealized cumency gain or losses).

The Imvestment Manager enters inlo forward contracts for the Series Trusl by buying forward contracts.

As of November 30, 2024 and Movember 30, 2023, there were no open forward contracts in the Series Trust.

7. NET GAIN{LOSS) ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Movember 30, 2024 November 30, 2023

Hel gain/loss) on financial sssets and liabilties af fair vaiue
thraugh profit and loss consist of the following:

Met roalizad (loss) on Investments in the Selected Fund : ] {1,038 248) L ] {142 583}
Totad net reslized (loas) on financisl assety and Eabilities ot fair

value through profit or loss 3 (1038248 5 [142.553)
Mevarnant in net onrealized sppreciation{depraciation) an
imestments in the Selectsd Fund § 0585648 5 (2544807)
Totnl ned change in unmaized appreciation’depreciation) on
financlal assots and bablithes at fair valuo through proM or kes  § 10565848 5 (2 844 BOT)

8. FEES, EXPENSES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

8.1 Feas and Expanaas

(A) Administrator Fees

The Administrator receives an annual fee of 0.08% on the first US3500 milkon of the nel sssets, 0.05% on the next
US$500 million of the net assets and 0.04% on the nel assals over LUS$1 bilion, subject to & monthby mindmurm fee of
$3,780. The fees eamed by the Administrator during the: years ended November 30, 2024 and Movember 30, 2023,
and outslanding fees payable to the Adminisirator as of November 30, 2024 and November 30, 2023 have baan
discioged in the Stetement of Comprehensaive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

(B) Custody Fees

The Custodian receives asset based and transactional charges dependent on market demographics of the assats,
Tha fees eamed by the Custodian during the years ended Movember 30, 2024 and November 30, 2023, and
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outstanding fess payable to the Custodian as of November 30, 2024 and November 30, 2023 have been disclosed in
the Statement of Comprehensive |ncome and the Staternent of Finandal Position, respeciively.

(C) Distribution Fees

Tha Distributor receives an annual fee of 025% of the Nel Asset Valus payabla monthly in
The Distribution Fees are payable by the Administrator, on behalf of the Manager, out of the assets of the
Trust. Tha fees samed by tha Distribulor during the yaars anded November 30, 2024 and Novembar 30, 2023,
outstanding fees payable to the Distributor as of Movember 30, 2024 and Novembar 30, 2023 have been disclosed
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Stalement of Financial Position, respectively.

(D) Transfer Agent Fees

Tha Transfer Agenl recaivas an annual fea of 0.01% of tha Net Aszel Valua and a $10 fae per transaction out of the
assels of the Serdes Trust The fees eamed by the Transfer Agent during the years ended November 30, 2024 and
Novambear 30, 2023, and outstanding fees payabie to the Transfer Agant &5 of Nowember 30, 2024 and Novambar
30, 2023 have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position,
respactivaly.

(E} Professional Fees

Profassional fees include lagal and audt fess. The fees paid durng the years ended Movembaer 30, 2024 and
November 30, 2023, and outstanding fees payable as of November 30, 2024 and November 30, 2023, have been
disdosed in the Statement of Comprehansive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respactively.

8.2 Related Parly Transactions

Parties are considered to be related f one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant
influsnce ovar the other party in making financial or oparational decisions. The Trustss, Fea Agent, Manager and
Agenl Mamber Company are all relatad parties to the Seres TrusL

Mt

There ware no ather transactions with related paries other than those in the normal course of business.

(A) Trusios Foos

The Trustee ia entitied to receive out of the Operational Costs Fee a fived annual fee of $10,000 payable annually in
advance. The fess eamed by the Trusiee during the years ended Novamber 30, 2024 and Novamber 30, 2023, and
outstanding fees payable o the Trustee as of November 30, 2024 and November 30, 2023 have been disclosed in
the Staterment of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Finandial Position, respectively, as a parl of Fee
Agani feas.

(B) Investment Management Feas

The Investment Manager receives an annual fee of 0.20% of the Net Asset Value payable quartery in amears.
The fees sarned by tha Invesiment Manager during the years anded Novemnber 30, 2024 and November 30, 2023,
and outstanding fees payable to the Investment Manager as of November 30, 2024 and November 30, 2023 have
bean disclosad in the Statement of Comprehensive Incoma and the Statament of Financial Position, respectivaly.

The Investment Manager of the Selected Fund receives a fee al the rate of 0.32% per annum, paid monthly in amears
oul of the assets of the Selected Fund based on the average Net Asset Value in the precading month.

(€} Foe Agent Foos

The Fee Agent receives an annual fee of 0.12% of Nel Assets Value (the “Operational Costs Fees™) and 0.57% of
Mat Assats Valus (the "Sales Administralive Fees®), scoiued on and calulsted as at sach valustion day. Tha
Operational Costs Fees ara paid by the Administrator, on behalf of the Trustee out of the assets of the Series Trust

Thea fees sarmed by the Fes Agent during years ended Novemnbar 30, 2024 and Novembar 30, 2023, and

oulsianding
fees payable lo the Fee Ageni as of November 30, 2024 and November 30, 2023 have been disclosed in the
Statemant of Comprahansive Incoma and the Stateman] of Financial Position, respactivaly.

The Fee Agent is responsible for paying certain ongoing and operalional costs and expenses of the Saeres Trust,
including manager fees and the following costs and expenses, which are, in reasonable judgement of the Fee Agent,
delarmined as ordinary costs and expansas (tha "Ordinary Costs”):

{} oudiing costs that are nol included in the audit fees and expanses;
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(i} annual fess payable in respact of the Sarles Trust or the Trust to govemment bodies and agenches; and
(i) insurance costs (i any).

Fer the avoidance of doubt, the Fee Agenl is not responsible for the payment of the sales administralive fees,
invasimant manager fees, audit fees, formation axpenses, distribution fess, administration fees, custody fess, any
broker fees relaling to security transactions, any costs relating to the Offering Memorandum and Appendix 25 and
ather simiar offering documents and the costs relating to the preparation, printing, translation and dalivery of such
documents and any texes releting to the purchasa or disposal of securities, legal or compensation costs, licensing
and any ather extraordinary costs and sxpansss that would nol usually cccur,

To the extent that the Operational Costa Fee is not sufficient to cover the Ordinary Costs, the Fee Agent is Bable for
any outstanding amounts, Any amounts remaining following paymant of the Ordinary Cosis shall ba retained by the
Fes Agent as its remuneration for acting as fee agent in respect of the Series Trust.

The Oparational Costs Fees and the Sales Administrative Fess accrue daily on an actual / 385 day counl fraction
basis and ane payable quartery in amears in the amounl eccrued, from and excluding, for the first accrual period only,
the initial closing day, and for all othar accrual periods, the last day of aach calendar quariar.

(D) Manager Foos
The Manager is entithed to receive out of the Operational Costs Fee, a management fee of 55,000 per annum payable
maonthly in armears, as a part of Fes Agant faes.

(E} Agent Member Company Fees

Tha Agant Member Company is sntiisd to receive a fes of 0.01% per annum of the Nel Assel Value payable
quarterly in arrears. The Agent Member Company Fees are paid by the Administralor, on behalf of the Manager out
of the assats of the Sariea Trust. The fees samed by the Agent Mambar Compamy during the years anded Novembar
30, 2024 and November 30, 2023 and cutstanding fess payable to the Agent Member Company as of November 30,
2024 and November 30, 2023 have been disclosad in the Statement of Comprehangive Incoms and the Statement of
Financial Position, respectively.

9. BORROWING AND LEVERAGE POLICY

Tha Sarss Trust may borrow up to 10% of ils Net Azsasl Valus i required 1o faciBate short term cash flows. During
the years ended November 30, 2024 and Novemnber 30, 2023, the Seriea Trust did not incur anmy bomowings.

10. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Trustee has evaluated all subsequent transactions and events through Aprl 28, 2025, the dale on which these
financial stalements wera available fo be isued. Effective December 1, 2024 through Aprl 28, 2025, thare ware
subscriptions of $4,037 402 and repurchases of $8,577,118. During the same period, there were distributions of
$1,097,150. Thara are no other subsaquent events to raport as relates lo the Seraes Trusl.
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2025
213,494,929.47 31,921,761,854
611,566.02 91,441,351
212,883,363.45 31,830,320,503

2,198,139

96.85 14,481
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2025 735,000 10,990

10

2025
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1,921,413,765

11,033,194

14 76,956,185
41,518,122,703

2,477,602,879

16 112,219,202,274
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2022 2022 12 31 2023
2023 12 31
22
38 59 328

23 103

2025 31
149.52
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2023 2022
usD usd
60,034 8,976 14,396 2,152
60,034 8,976 14,396 2,152
60,034 8,976 14,396 2,152
185,000 27,661 205,000 30,652
(25) ) 58 9
245,009 36,634 219,454 32,813
(115,081) (17,207) (112,703) (16,851)
129,928 19,427 106,751 15,961
129,928 19,427 106,751 15,961
129,928 19,427 106,751 15,961
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2023 12 31

2023 2022

usb usb
9 2,249,019 336,273 1,984,033 296,653
10 185,864 27,790 205,864 30,781
2,434,883 364,064 2,189,897 327,433
10 451,584 67,521 336,526 50,317
451,584 67,521 336,526 50,317
11 735,000 109,897 735,000 109,897
1,248,299 186,646 1,118,371 167,219
1,983,299 296,543 1,853,371 277,116
2,434,883 364,064 2,189,897 327,433

2024 14
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2023 12 31
usb uSsD usD
2023
735,000 109,897 1,118,371 167,219 1,853,371 277,116
129,928 19,427 129,928 19,427
12 31 735,000 109,897 1,248,299 186,646 1,983,299 296,543
2022

735,000 109,897 1,011,620 151,257 1,746,620 261,155
106,751 15,961 106,751 15,961
12 31 735,000 109,897 1,118,371 167,219 1,853,371 277,116
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2023 12 31
2023 2022

USD USD
129,928 19,427 106,751 15,961
4 (60,034) (8,976) (14,396) (2,152)
69,894 10,451 92,355 13,809
20,000 2,990 4,999 747
20,000 2,990 4,999 747
115,058 17,203 112,595 16,835
115,058 17,203 112,595 16,835
4 60,034 8,976 14,396 2,152
264,986 39,621 224,345 33,544
264,986 39,621 224,345 33,544
9 1,984,033 296,653 1,759,688 263,109
2,249,019 336,273 1,984,033 296,653
9 2,249,019 336,273 1,984,033 296,653

2,249,019 336,273 1,984,033 296,653
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KY1-1104 309
c/o Maples Corporate Services Limited, P.0. Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman Islands

2023 12

22.48
37 5.1

2023 12
2024 31
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2023 2022

60,034 14,396

60,034 14,396
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2023 2022
185,000 205,000
185,000 205,000

2023 2022
(48) (50)
(6,390) (6,478)

(108,643) (106,175)

(115,081) (112,703)

2039 10 10
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5,000 2022 5,000 2023 12 31

2023
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2023 2022
2,249,019 1,984,033
2,249,019 1,984,033
2023 2022
185,864 205,864
185,864 205,864
2023 2022
451,584 336,526
451,584 336,526
2023 2022

1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
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31

2022 12 31

2022 12 31
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2023 12 31 2022 12 31
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
185,864 185,864 205,864 205,864
185,864 185,864 205,864 205,864
451,584 451,584 336,526 336,526
735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
1,186,584 1,186,584 1,071,526 1,071,526
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
185,000 185,000 205,000 205,000
185,000 185,000 205,000 205,000
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13
2023 2022
108,643 106,175
108,643 106,175
14
2023 12 31
15 2023 12 31
2023 12 31
16
2023 12
2024 31 2024
17

2024 14
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LUBS .'.fmwrit.'gwun} L Enidlnel
Financly Etatemends for the yaar snded 51 December 2002

Refersnce 2023 2022
e oo e 008 T TAEOE
- from financial instrumants measured af amorfised
cost 60,034 14,358
Total interest income 4 60,034 14,396
R R R T M T TR T BTG
“Other (losses)/revenuss (95} EB
Total revenues 245,009 219,454
“Beneral, adminisirativa and other cperating expenses 6 (isoan (172,703}
Operating profit before allowance and taxation 129,528 106,751
Profit before tax 129,928 106,751
Incar*eta.xexpenﬁe e e s e e
Profit after tax 128,928 106,751

The accompanying notas form an integral part of these financial statements
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2023

Rsfarenca 2023 2022
USD o Mate
BSOS e et 2t g e e ez e ne
Cashard due iombarks 8 2245019 1,984,033
‘Cthar assets 10 185 #@54 505,864
Total assefs 2,434,883 2,183,897
Uabilities G SRR
Clher fabiities i0 451 584 335,525
Total liabilities 451,584 336,526
Sheretholdees® sguily. oo oo s e nne s e
Share capital e o iBes o TOBTOR: TSRO
“Redzined earnings 1,248,298 1,118,371
Total shareholders’ equity 1,853,299 1,853,371
Total liabilities and shareholders' equily 2,434,887 2,189,897

Approved and autharised for lssue by the board of directors on 14 June 2024
! o |
i R ;
}&{m\ma ha;r«"-" . g Director .
I?}; fl i‘_t-ll"‘""t' }

The accompanying notes form an integral part of thess financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the vear ended 31 December 2023

Share capital Retanad Total
ust aamings
T ————————————
Balance at 1January MR 735000 1,118371 1,863,371
Frofit for the year - 129,023 129,958
Balance at 31 December 735,000 1,248,285 1,983,299
2022
Baiance ot {January 785000 1011620 1,746,620
Profit for the vear 106,751 106,761
Balance at 31 December 735,000 1,118,371 1,853.3M

The accompanying notes form an intagral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2023

ush E:ﬁw 2023 2022
Cash flows from cperaling activities

Profit before {ax for the pedicd 188,528 106,751
Adjustments to reconcile net profit to net cash

_generated from operating activities

Mon-cash itéms included in net profit before tax

and ather adjustments:

JUBTESLINCOME o eeereceereszsseeraress s genssssegmesasanssabasnsssasanans 80,034 ... (14,398)
Cash generated from operating activities before

changes in operating assets and liabilities £9,894 92,355
MNet decreasein operaling assels: = oot se e an e e
Other assets 20,000 4,895
Mel decrease in operating assels 20,000 4,999
MNet increase in operating liabilities: e
Other liakilitias 115,058 112,585
MNet increase In operating liabllitles: ... 115088 112,535
Interest income received 4 680,034 14,386
Net cash generated from operating activity 264,986 224,345
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents 264,986 224,345
Cash and cash equivalants at the baglnning of yaar 9 1,584 033 1,789 BES
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 2,249,019 1,984,083
Cash and due from banks 9 2,248 018 1,584,033
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 2,249, 19 1,984,023

The accompanying netes form an integral part of these financlal statements.,
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MNotes to the Financial Statements
1. Principal activities

UBS Managemant (Cayman) Limited (the "Company) is incorporated n the Cayman |slands with
limited liability. The Company's prncipal astivitias are the creation of trusts and the administration and
management of assets in frusis. The Company's registered office is c/o Maples Corporate Servicas
Limited, P.0. Bowx 308, Ugland House, Grand Cayman ¥Y1-1104, Cayman Islands,

Key developments during the year

On 12 Juns 2023, UBS Group AG acquired Credii Suisse Group AG, succeeding by cperation of
Swiss law to all assets and liabifities of Credit Suisse Group A, and bacame the direct or indirect
sharsholder of all of the former direct and indirect subsidizries of Credit Suisse Group AG (the
Transaction).

Upon the completion of the Transaction, each oulstanding, registered Cradit Suisse share converled
to the right to recaive, subject to the payment of certain fees to the Credil Suisse depesitory in the
case of Credit Suisse American depositery sharas (ADS), the merger conslderation consisting of
1/20.48 UBS Group AG shares. In aggregate, Credit Sulsse shareholders recelved 5.1% of the
outstanding LSS Group AG shares on the acquisition dabe, with a purchass price of USD 3.7 billion,

In December 2028, the Beard of Cirectors of UBS Group AG approved the merger of UBS AG and
Cradt Suisse AG, and both entities entered inte a definitive marger agreement. The mergar is
completed on 31 May 2024,

2. Material Accounting Policies
(a) Statament of compliance

These financial statements have been preparad in accordance with all applicable IFRS Accounting
Standards, which cafective term includes all apglicabds Indhidual intemational Financlzl Reparting
Standards, Intemnational Accounting Standards ("lASs") and Interpretations issued by International
Accounting Standards Soard (lASE"). A summary of the significant accounting policies acopted by
the Company is set cut balow.

(b) Basis of preparation of the Financial Statéements
The measurement basis used in the preparzlion of the financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation cof financial statements in conformity with IFRS Acccunting Standards reguires
managemeant to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reported smounts of assets, liabilitiss, income and expenses. The estimales and associated
assumptions are based on hisloricsl experience and various ofher faclors that are believed lo be
reascnable under the circumstancas, the rasults of which form the basis of making the judgaments
about carrylng values of assets and llabilities that are not readlly apparent from other sources, Actual
results may ciffer from these csimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewsd on an ongoing basis, Revisiens to ascounting
estimales are recognisad in the pariod in which the eslimale s revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the peried of the revision and fiture periods if the ravisicn affects both curent and future
periods.
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2. Material Accounting Policies {(continued)
{b) Basis of preparation of the Financial Statements (continued)
Standards effective in the current period

The group has appied the following new and amendsd standards for its annual reporting period
commancing 1 January 2023

. Definition of Accounting Estimates — Amendments to [AS S
. Disclosure of Accounting Pelicies — Amendments to IAS 1 and [FRS Practics Statement 2

The amandments listed above did not have zny impact on the amounts recogrised in prior pericds
and are not expected fo significantly affect the current or future periods.

{c) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and due from banks comprise cash at bank and on hand with banks, and short-term, highly
liguid irvestments that are readily convertible into known amaounts of cash and which are subject lo an
insignificant risk of chargas in value, having baen within thres months of maturity at acquisition.

{d) Foreian currency

The Company's functional and oresentation cumency is United States Dellars (*USD"). Forelgn
cumrency transactions during the year are translated into LISD at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Menetary assets and Fabiltties dencminated in foreign cumrencies are trans'ated
into USL at the foreign exchange rales niing &l the end of the raperting pariod. Exchange gains and
losses are recognised in the profit or loss.

Mon-monetary assets and liabiliies that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign cumency
are translated into USD using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-
monstary assets and [iabifitiss denominated in foreign currencies thal are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling st the dates the fair valus was determined. Foreign
currency differences arising en retranslation are recegnised in profit or less.

(e) Other assels

Other assets are initially recognised at fair valee and thereafter stated at amortised cost less
Expected Credit Loss ("ECLT) (refer to Nole 2(g)), sxcest whera the recevables are interest-free
loans made to related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated af cost less impairment for bad and doubtiul
debts,

(f) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Praovisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Company has a legal
or gonstructive obligation anising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to setthe the obligaticn and a reliabls sstimate cash be made, Where the time
valua of meney is material, provisions are stated at the present valua of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be raquired, or the amount cannot

be astimated refebly, the obligation is disclosed as a conlingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remete, Possibla obligations, whose exdstance will only be confrmed
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2. Material Accounting Poligies {(continued)
(f} Provisions and contingent liabilities (centinued)

by the cocurrence or non-cocuirence of one of more future events are also disclosed as contingant
liatilties unkess the probabily of outflow of econamic benefits is ramote,

(g) Impairment

The carrying amount of the Company's assels is reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
datermine whether there is any objeclive evidance of impairmant. If any such chjective evidence
exists, the assel's recoverable amcunt is estimated at the end of each repoting period. An
impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amaunt. Impairment losses are recognised in the profit or loss,

Under IFRS 8, the impairment requirements apply primarily to financial assets measured at amortised
cost, The impaimment requirements are based on a forward-locking expecied credit loss model by
incorporating reasonable and supporiable forecasts of future sconomic conditions available at the
reporting date. This requires considerable judgement over how changes in economic factors affect
ECLs, which is determined on a probabilty-weighted basis.

(h) Revenue recognition

Provided that i is probable that the sconomic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue and
cosls, if applicable, can be measured refably, sarvice fes income is recogrised in profit or loss whaen
the invastment managemsant savice is provided.

{I) Expenses
All expenses are recognised in profit and loss on an accrual basis,
{j} Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a parly is considered to be related to the Company if:
{a) A perscn, or a close member of that persen's family, is related to the Company if that persen:
)  has contrel or joint contral over the Company;
(i) has significant influence cver the Company; or
(i) is a member of the key management personnal of the Company or the Company’s
parent.

() Anentily is related o the Company if any of the folowing conditions applies:

() The entity and the Cempany are mambers of the same group (which means frat each
parent, suosidiary and fellow sutsidiary is related to the others).

(il  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the other sntity is a member).

(i} Both entities are joint vantures of the same third party,

() Ore entity 1s 2 joint venturs of & third party and the other anllly is an associate of the
third party.

) The gnﬂ?y is a post-employment benafit plan for the benefit of employees of either the
Company or an enfity related to the Company.

{(vi) The entity is control'ed or jointly controlled by a persen identified in {3),

(i} A persen identified in (&)() has significant influence over the entity or is 2 member of the
key maragement personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

10
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2.  Material Accounting Policles (continued)

{Jj) Related parties (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expecied to
influgnce, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

3. Changes in Accounting Policies

The IASE has lssued a number of amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards that are first effective
tor the current accounting perivd of the Company, The adoption of these amendments had no
material impact to the Company's financial position, rasult of eparations or cash flows.

The Company has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period (Moke 15},

4, Total Interest Income

USD 2023 2022
Total interest income
“interest income on cash and due from banks 80,04 14,398
Yotal interest income 60,034 14,396

Afl the sbove interest incoma on financal instruments mesasurad at amortissd cost

5. Service Fee Income

The principal activities of the Company are the creation of trusts and the administration and
management of assets in frusts,

Revenue reprasents investmant management fee income sarned from fallow subsidiary as follows:

usD 2023 2022
Total service foe NCOme e st
Senvice fee income 185,000 206,000
Total service fee income 185,000 205,000

6. General, Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

usn 2023 2022
General administrative and other operalingexpenses ...,
Bankchares e T o S (50
BAudtor remuneration 8,320 (6,478)
e R e e T e {1ﬂﬁi§¢3] ....... {1061?5}
Tolal general adminisirative and other operating expenses {115,081) (112,703)

Al of the above expenditures ara payabla o the Company’s immediate holding company and the
immediate holding company settles such expenditures on behelf of the Company,

11
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7. Taxation

There are no lakes on income or gans in the Cayman Islands and the Company has received an
undertaking from the Govemor in Council of the Cayman lslands sxempting 1t from all Jocal income,
profits and capital taxes untl 10 October 2039. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is included
in theee financial statements.

B.  Unconsolidated Structured Entities

Sponsored unconsolidated structured eniities

The Company considers dself the sponser of a structured ertity when efther ts name appears In the
name of the siructured entity or in products issued by it or there is a gereral expectation from the
market that the Company is asscciated with the structured enlily or the Company was irvolved in the
design or set up of the structured entily and has a form of involemant with the structured antify.

Tha below unconsoidated structured endities are sponsored by the Company where & fixed annual

management fee of USD 5,000 (2022: USD 5,000) is recaived but no interest is held by the
Company as at 31 December 2023

12
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8. Unconsolideted Structured Entities {continued)

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Global REIT Tripla Premium Fund [F-:r &uaﬁ'md Institutional Invastors (}nr;,r}

e e e W smsmmsmmsmms s e

us High Div Equity Premium Fund {Fﬂr ‘Cluziifiad institutional Invastors. Onky*

US Emﬂl C':p_m Eq_ntr_l_:r_w_'qltjm Fund {Foe Guamed [nstrtulmnal Im&sims Dnly}

Jayan Equity F‘mmuum Furnd (r-w Ouahﬁad Ir:si:tuhnr*al Inmstcurs Dn!;r}

NE/MYAN US REIT Incoms Fund [For Gualffisd Inshiuf oral Iwas':c{s Only)

Darwa UKH ah Dﬂ;ldﬂ-l‘“d ._g.Jrlf Furd (For Qualified nstitulional Investors Dr]hr‘l

e e B e L L L L L L L LT

Daiwa Wil Veriures 11, LP. Furd
Brazl Equ:ly' Npha Fund {l'-:ll' Qualiiied Institutional investors Onljr}

Daiwa Braziian Raal Bu-"rd Furd (Fd;rr Cualified Institufional Invastmg_q:_lllr}

N|55ay Japan Equ 1.1; Am"e Fu nd {Fﬂr GuaH‘ ad lnstutuhunal 1n'destur5 Cnly}

AP Australia REIT Fund [Fnr Gualmad Institutional Investors. Gﬂly}

J-RE(T and Real Estate Equity Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Cnly)

(Djaﬁa American High Dividend Equity Quattro Income Fund (For Gualied Institutional Invesiars
.ﬂl

Daiwa American REIT Quattro Income Furd (For Gualified Institutional Investors Only)

Shunsel Wndd ‘.*.frap Stahe T;-'pse (Fcr Guahﬁnd Inshtutnnal Imrnstnr-.; Oniy)

LIS Mur-lqpal Bond Fund

Tokio Maring CAT Bond Fund

Elobal ki g_h Dmdand tgmtj F‘ramn.w Fun.-n {Fur GL.aIrﬁad lnﬁh‘u.lluﬂnal 1meqt_{:r§pnly}

T T ——

Meister 5 Colection

BSMD Global Advantags

..FIMCG::::S:'ié%iﬁffif}iiitl.mm::.:Zmﬁﬁﬁ:Z:E‘E@ZHEEIIIZZIZ:ZI:ZI:ZZIIZIZIIIZIZIIIIIZ:ZI::I::I

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Foreign EE".?"“‘"M Man AFL Smart Leverage Et“m"?f”""
5SB! Pictat Asa Hi-Tach Vanture Fund

ﬁ:l:ldDHSHGd T e e e e e

Premium Carry Strategy Fund
* The funds wera terminated during 2023,

The Company has not provided financial or ather support to unconsclidatad structured entiies that It
was not contractually required to provide,

The Company does not curently have the ntention to provide financial or other support to
unconsolidated structured antities that it is not contractually required to provide.

13
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{ash and cash squivalenis compriss:

UsD 2023 2022
Cash and due from banks

Cash and dus from barks 22490139 1,984,033
Total cash and due from banks 2,248,019 1,984,033
10. Other Assets and Other Liabilities

usD 2023 2022
Cther assets

Interast and fees receivable 185264 005,864
Total other assets 185,864 205,864
usD 2023 2022
Other liabililies

Interest and fees payable 451,584 335,525
Total other liabilities 451,584 336,526
11. Share Capital

(a) Authorised and issued share capital

2023 2022
No. of USD  Mo.of USD
shares shares

Authorised:

Crdinary shares of USD § sach 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000000
Issued and fully paid up:

Ordinary shares 735,000 735,000 736,000 735,000

The holders of ordinary shares are entitied to receia dividends as declared from time to time and ane
entitled to one vote per share at general maetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank squally

with regard to the Company's residual assets.

14
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11.  Share Capital (continued)
{b} Capital management

The Company's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to
continie as a going concern 50 that it can conlinue lo provids returns 1o shareholders, by pricing
services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a reasoneble
cest. As the Company is part of a larger group, the Company's sources of adeitional capital and
policies for distribution of excess capital may also be affected by the group's capital managament
objectives, Tha Company defines “capilal” as including all components of aquity.,

The Company's capitel structura is mgulary reviewed and managed with due regard to the capital
management practices ef the group to which the Company belongs. Adustments are made to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions affecting the Company or the group, to
the extent that thase do not conflict with the directors’ fiduciary duties towards the Company.

Tha Company was not subject o externally imposed capital requirements in the current pericd,
12.  Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

Expeosure to credit, liquidty, interest rate and foreign currency risks arises in the normal course of the
Company's business, These risks are managed by the Company's financial management policies and
practices described balow,

(a) Credit risk

The Company's crech risk is primarily attributable to amounts due from group companias and cash at
bank. Cradit risk is defined as risk that ena party to a financial instrument wil cause a financial loss to
another party by failing to discharge an cbligation. Management regulary monitars its risk exposure to
ensure that its credit risk is kept fo a minimal level. The maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of each Tinandal assat in the statement of financial posilien after
deducting any impairment alowance.

(b} Liguidity risk

The Company's paley is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to satisfy its contractual and
reasonably foresesable obligations as they fall dus.

Al 31 December 2023 and 2022, all of the Company's financial fiabilities, which includes all creditors
and accruals, are on demand or undated and are expected to be setiad batwean thres to twalie
manths.

(c) Interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk only to the extent that it earns bank interest on cash

and deposits. Al 31 December 2025 and 2022, a change in interest rates would have no direct
matarial effect cn the earrying value of the recegnisad assets or fisbiites of the Company.

15
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12.  Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (continued)
{d} Foreign currency risk
The Company is exposad to foreign currency risk primarily through certain transactions which give ris2

o paysbles that are cenominated in Heng Keng dollars ("HKD"). As the HED is pegged to the USD,
the Company considers that the risk of moverents in exchange rates betwean USD and HKD to be

insignificant.
(&) Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Company's financial instruments carried at cost or amertised cost are
not materally different from their fair value as at 21 December 9023 and 9029,

13. Material Related Party Transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclesed elsewhere in the financial statemants, the
Company entered into the following material related party transactions.

{a) Related party balance sheet iransactions

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Parent Fellow Total Parent Fellow Taotal
Group Group
UsD Companies Companies
Assets
Ciner assels - 185,854 185,864 - 205,854 005,884
Total assats — 185,864 185,864 — 205,864 205,864
Liabilities and
Equity
Ctherlichiilfies 451884  — 4515 536,526 — 336,506
Shere capital 735,000 — T340 735,000 - 735,000
Total liabilities and
shareholders'
eguity 1,186,584 = 1,186,584 1,071,626 - 1,071,526
16
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13.  Material Related Parily Transactions (continued)

{b) Related party revenues and expenses

= 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Parent Fallow Total Parent Fallow Total
Group Group
usb Companies Companies
Revenues
Sendcs jeelncome: ... e OO0 TERIND T 205000 | 905,000
Total revenues — 185,000 185,000 — 205,000 208,000

{c) Remuneration of key management personnel

"Remuneration of key management personnel (USD) 2023 2022
Cirector's Fee 108,543 108175
Total Remuneration of key management personnel 105,643 108,175

14. Parent and Ultimate Holding Company

At 31 December 2023, the immediate parent of the Company is Credt Suisse (Hong Hong) Limited,
which is Incorporated in Heng Keng and the ultimate controling party of the Company is U3S Group
A£G, which is incorporated in Switzedand, UBS Group AG produces financial statements available for
public use.

15. Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and Interpretations issued
but not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2023

Cartain new accounting standsrds, amendments to accounting standards and interpretations have
been published that are not mandatery for 21 December 2023 reporting pericds and have not been
early adopted by the Company. These standards, amandments or interpretations are not expected to
have a material impact on the entity in the curent or future reporting pereds and on foreseeable
future transactions.

16. Subsequent Events

In December 2023, the Board of Diractors of UBS Group AG approved the merger of LBS AG and
Credit Suisse AG, and both entities entered info a definitive merger agreement. The merger is
complated on 31 May 2024,

Effective 1 March 2024, the name of Credit Suisse Management (Caymar) Limited has been
changed to LUBS Management (Cayman) Limited.

17.  Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statements were approvad for issue by the board of directers of the Company on 14
June FH24,

17
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Independent Auditors® Report to the Trustee
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of US Municipal Bond Fund (the "Series Trust™), a series trust
of UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) 111 (the "Trust™), which comprise the statement of financial position as
at November 30, 2024, the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes, comprising material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, inall material respects, the
financial position of the Series Trust as at November 30, 2024, and its financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board ("' 1FRS Accounting Standards').

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ("'ISAs™). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the "Auditors” Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements" section of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in
accordance with International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (*'IESBA Code'™) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Cayman
Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust"s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Series
Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust®s financial reporting
process.
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Independent Auditors® Report to the Trustee (continued)
Auditors* Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors” report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Series Trust"s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management®s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Series Trust"s ability to continue as a going concern. Ifwe
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors” report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors"
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events ina
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

April 29, 2025
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Independent Auditor®s Report
To the Board of Directors of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited
(formerly known as Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The financial statements of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited (formerly known as Credit Suisse
Management (Cayman) Limited) (the““Company””), which are set out on pages 4 to 17, comprise:
the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023;
the statement of income for the year then ended;
the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and
the notes to the financial statements, comprising material accounting policy information and
other explanatory information

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Company as at 31 December 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (““I1SAs””). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor®s Responsibilities

for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Independence
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the

International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (““IESBA Code””), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.
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Independent Auditor®s Report (continued)

To the Board of Directors of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited
(formerly known as Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company®s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor®s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor®s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Independent Auditor®s Report (continued)

To the Board of Directors of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited
(formerly known as Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor®™s responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company"s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors® use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company"s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor®s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor"s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 14 June 2024
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